fusion 2019

PROCEEDINGS NATIONAL SYMPOSIUM ON HUMAN COMPUTER INTERACTION 2019

15 FEBRUARY 2019 UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA, MELAKA





fusion 2019

Preface

I am very pleased to welcome you to National Symposium on HCI 2019 in Malacca! We chose the theme Fusion, which we hope within just a day, you are able to 'taste' the combination of various 'flavours' delivered by our very own community that is diverse and of rich cultures. What we aim for this symposium is to learn from one another's past and ongoing research from all over the country. The diversity of the 22 accepted papers asserts the theme fusion.

HCI always pushes its boundaries to further understand the interaction between human and computers, to improve its usability and with today's context, computers have expanded to cover all form of technology, improving not just the usability, but as well as the user experience. While user interface has always been the common topic when it comes to HCI, it is high time for us now to further investigate and explore social interfaces. Starting by looking at the bigger picture, Abdul Razak's first reflects on the shift of paradigm from user-centred to human-centred design, which is related to topic by Harun's on nurturing confidence via design thinking, which both share the same aspiration that is recognising the full worth of user's emotions. Striving for social interfaces that works and acceptable, covers aspects as per presented by Awang and Nasruddin's on social cognitive factors and sharing behaviour in education context, Kin et al.'s gamification waste for green community, Hamid et al.'s sustainable visualisation in switch management to Ghazali's persuasive technology for behavioural change.

Driven by scientific research and developing empirical understandings of users, Harun's paper first discusses how user driven research can be achieved via participatory design, while Meng et al.'s study explores the notion of interactive mobile AR. Further works describe how the HCI methods, tools and techniques being applied to derive to rich insights. Mohd Yusoff et al.'s study focuses on the design of smart building automation system for 6LoWPAN network, Ismail et al.'s implemented user requirements analysis for dengue surveillance, Sharin et al.'s applied image processing and eye detection for selfie images on mobile application, while Abdul Wahab et al.'s opted for UEQ in evaluating a shariah-compliant fashion e-commerce prototype.

More HCI work started to emerge for the special needs, especially children. There are two papers reporting on autism: Mazlan et al.'s brain activation on children with autism, and Mohamad Daud et al.'s game-based intervention for autism spectrum disorder. Other special needs for children are discussed by Abdullah et al. on children with learning difficulties, Mohamed Zain et al. on dyslexic student and Azmi et al. on children with disability of the arm, shoulder and hand. A paper by Wong et al. meanwhile, focuses on the needs of the older adult when using smartphone.

As previously mentioned, Malaysia context is rich with its values and cultures. Cultural heritage is also one of the areas that can be enriched via HCI. A paper by Ariffin et al. presented a work on appropriation of mobile application design in the local context, while Shiratuddin et al. focuses on heritage adaptive AR. The use of social media in our local workplace settings has been the interest of Azman et al. as their work measures the user engagement metric of the usage of social media of Malaysia Higher Education institutions.

Last but not least, we have a work carried out by Wong et al. on the mapping of colour, mood and music in a 3-D model that explores further the emotionally inherent interface.

We are thrilled with our guest speaker whom is our very own honorary member, Nor Laila Md Noor (a professor at UiTM) to kick off our symposium. With her vast experience, there is so much we can learn from her. The one-day symposium is designed in such a way that we don't just learn from one another's ongoing research on HCI of various domains, but, to also explore the possibilities of working together collaboratively. The exciting brainstorming session is hoped to facilitate to achieve this goal.

fusion 2019

preface

To all attendees, don't forget to have fun, and enjoy the symposium, as much as we do as we organised this event! Let fusion brings us together and eventually allows us to set path on how HCI can contribute and make impact in the landscape of Malaysia's ICT and digital transformation.

Associate Professor Dr Masitah Ghazali myHCI-UX President

15 February 2019, Malacca

Fusion 2019

1usion 2019

Table of Contents

A League of Their Own: Cultural Appropriate Design Impact to Mobile Applications in Local Context.	1
Shamsul Arrieya Ariffin, Maizatul Hayati Yatim, Azniah Ismail and Salman Firdaus Sidek	-
A gamification waste to craft mobile apps for green community Kin Meng Cheng, Ah Choo Koo and Junita Shariza Mohd Nasir	5
Measuring Social Media of Malaysia Higher Education Institutions Based on User Engagement Metrics	9
Brain Activation Study on Autistic Children Nurshara Fazreen Wan Ahmad, Wan Fatimah Wan Ahmad and Tong Boon Tang	13
Towards Interactive Mobile Augmented Reality Meng Chun Lam, Nazatul Aini Abd Majid, Siti Soleha Muhammad Nizam, Nur Asylah Suwadi and Mohamed Jafar Sadik	16
Nurturing Confidence via Design Thinking Afdallyna Harun	20
User-Driven Research via Participatory Design	23
The Needs of Sustainable Visualization in Switch Management Erman Hamid, Nazrulazhar Bahaman, Syarulnaziah Anawar and Zakiah Ayop	26
User Interaction Model in Heritage Adaptive Augmented Reality Norshuhada Shiratuddin, Hock Kuan Tenh, Syamsul Bahrin Zaibon and Siti Mahfuzah Sarif	31
Design of Smart Building Automation System for 6LoWPAN Network: The Platform Structure	35
Icon Recognition on Smartphone by Older Adults Chui Yin Wong, Rahimah Ibrahim, Tengku Aizan Hamid and Evi Indriasari Mansor	39
Mapping the color, mood and music in a 3-Dimensional Model Woon Choong Chen, Noris M Norowi, Shyamala Doraisamy and Mas Rina Mustaffa	42
Technology-Based Intervention for Children with Learning Difficulties Muhammad Haziq Lim Abdullah, Syariffanor Hisham, Mohd Hafiz Zakaria and Shahril Parumo	47
Persuading Malaysians through Technology Masitah Ghazali	51
Game-Based Intervention for Autism Spectrum Disorder Nor Farah Naquiah Mohamad Daud and Muhammad Haziq Lim Abdullah	55

sion 20	19

User Requirements Analysis of Community-based eHealth Mobile App for Dengue Surveillance	60
Using Image Processing and Eye Detection to Improve Photograph Aestheticness of Selfie Images on Mobile Application	65
A Paradigm Shift: From User-Centred to Human-Centred Design Fariza Hanis Abdul Razak	68
The Relationship of Social Cognitive Factors and Knowledge Sharing Behavior in Teachers' Virtual Communities	71
Utilizing User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) in Evaluating a Shariah-Compliant Fashion E-Commerce Prototype Nadia Abdul Wahab, Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain and Syafiqa Amira Zulkifli	75
Smart Door for Children with Disability of the Arm, shoulder and Hand (DASH) Siti Sarah Azmi and Raja-Jamilah Raja-Yusof	79
Integrating Multisensory Learning in Mobile Application Development for Dyslexic Student Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain, Nadia Abdul Wahab and Laili Farhana Md Ibharim	83

A League of Their Own: Cultural **Appropriate Design Impact to Mobile Applications in Local Context**

First Author

Shamsul Arrieya Ariffin Creative Industries shamsul@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Third Author

Azniah Ismail Faculty of Arts, Computing and Faculty of Arts, Computing and Creative Industries Sultan Idris Education University, Sultan Idris Education University, Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia azniah@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Second Author

Maizatul Hayati Mohamad Yatim Salmanfirdaus Sidek Creative Industries maizatul@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Fourth Author

Faculty of Arts, Computing and Faculty of Arts, Computing and Creative Industries Sultan Idris Education University, Sultan Idris Education University, Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia Tanjung Malim, Perak, Malaysia salmanfirdaus@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

The human computer interaction which includes user experience and usability for culturally aspects are generally overlook for mobile application interfaces design. Additionally there is scarcity of digital content for mobile learning and its evaluation. For an instance the mobile learning require special attention in terms of their usability aspects, such as cultural aspects which is significant to improvement of mobile websites and software applications quality in the development of local content. On the other hand, the cultural appropriate design is a fusion of general usability and cultural elements for local context evaluation. Therefore, this paper presented the reflection on the impact of application of culturally appropriate design guidelines for a mobile learning in the local context.

Author Keywords

Mobile learning; usability; local cultural context

ACM Classification Keywords

Management, usability, user centred design, education.

Introduction

The research on cultural appropriate design guidelines is motivated by lack of local content in [3, 4, 6]. For example in Malaysia development of local content follow SKMM Guidelines. In fact there is lacking of local user interface design guidelines for mobile applications for developed countries such as in Malaysia. One of the significant challenges for using software comes from the lack of guidelines for acknowledging local culture in software design [10]. This relates to no one design can fits all.

Uniqueness of Local Culture

This study is inspired by previous local cultural literatures for usability design guidelines: In existing literatures there is no interconnecting at all with mobile learning and mobile technology. This article proposed for the fusion of culturally appropriate design with general usability to evaluate the usability of mobile applications for local context particularly in mobile learning. The following are amongst the local cultural influences that impacted the local cultural identities [1, 2].

- Local Language (Bahasa Malaysia): Language plays an important role in Malay society. Bahasa Malaysia is the official Language and, together with English, is widely spoken.
- Local Philosophy (Malay and Islamic): The Malay philosophy of life is related to nature and also to Islamic philosophy.
- Local Aesthetic Values (Flora and Fauna) and Local Colours (from Nature)
- Local Cultural Content: Malay culture highlights the importance of art and craft. It is reported that local cultural design elements embedded in lessons can motivate students in their mobile learning.

Usability for Local Context

In human computer interaction (HCI), usability is crucial to improve the quality of the software design. This is because design issues need to be detected and reported to improve the quality of the software product and reduce the high implementation cost in the later stages. The usability aspects are under researched in mobile learning [5], particularly in terms of the local context [1]. HCI experts, such as Nielsen, have highlighted the importance of usability design guidelines to produce guality software for the local context [7]. Meanwhile, a previous study on mobile learning found that the fusion of general usability principles and cultural appropriate design principles are important in determining the quality of a software product, particularly for mobile learning in a local context [2].

Mobile Learning

The mobile learning process may involve the use of mobile devices, such as smart mobile phones, and laptops, etc. Mobile learning is also known as the process involving conversations across multiple contexts among people and personal interactive technologies [5]. In general, facilitated by the use of a range of mobile devices, mobile learning can also be considered to provide accessibility to learn independently irrespective of the place and time. This usage of mobile learning devices may also be extended to various fields. Thus usability for cultural appropriate designs plays an important role in using mobile devices, such as smart phones, particularly for the users in terms of mobile learning

Implementation

Aspects of culture could help to improve the usability of the mobile learning user interface. Current research deals with the usability aspects and cultural aspects of the websites but not many research results could be found for mobile learning in terms of appropriate local culture. Sources for mobile learning interface usability that relate to the cultural issues have also been overlooked [1, 4]. Mobile learning applications that acknowledge local culture may be a way of improving usability and keeping the Malaysian culture alive, and, thus, avoid, the pressure of the globalizing forces of overseas mobile content [6].

Case One: Mobile Apps

In this study three mobile applications have been evaluated which is namely Songket, Batik and Jawi. From the study the users preferred the Batik mobile applications due to its suitable content, aesthetic values, using local languages and embedding local philosophy. The second mobile application which is Songket is still appealing particularly for its aesthetical values however has some button issues which cause the application to hang. However the Jawi application is fun to play with but lack of Help information on how to play the mobile application [1].

Case Two: Mobile Web Site

This study has been conducted with students to evaluate mobile portal web site for a local university. It has been observed that students prefer using mobile web site portal that utilized local language such as Bahasa Malaysia. Some students found it was difficult to understand the content information if it is in English language. Students also prefer realistic error management in handling the mobile web site portal.

Potential for More Local Content

The findings highlight local content that could be made available for applications by embedding Local Cultural Appropriate Design for local users for different software applications [4, 9]. These studies indicates the fusion by embedding the principles from culturally appropriate design guidelines for evaluation, thus demonstrating the significant impact on the mobile application of cultural appropriate design [4, 10]. Additionally, these cultural design principles are embedded to improve the usability of mobile learning for a local context. These principles include local language, local philosophy, local aesthetics, and the use of suitable local content [1]. Likewise, these cultural principles can be embedded in the different types of mobile learning software content for future usage to facilitate in learning [9].

Conclusion

The contribution of this study is the reflection of impact of usability design principles which include the fusion of general usability and local culture in the software design. This indicates that local cultural factors in usability are also important when designing digital mobile content for mobile learning. The current project is the CADG principles implementation are on mobile games in learning STEM subject in mathematic in local primary school.

Acknowledgements

The authors would like to express their appreciation to all the participants. The appreciation includes the Ministry of Higher Education Malaysia, which provided the FRGS grant code: 2017-0074-107-02.

References

1. Shamsul Arrieya Ariffin and Laurel Evelyn Dyson.

2015. Culturally Appropriate Design of Mobile Learning Applications in the Malaysian Context. In *International Conference on Cross-Cultural Design* (pp. 3-14). Springer, Cham.

- 2. Shamsul Arrieya Ariffin. 2014. The Contribution of mLearning to the Study of Local Culture in the Malaysian University Context, PhD dissertation, Faculty of Engineering and Information Technology, University of Technology Sydney, Sydney, Australia
- 3. Shamsul Arrieya Ariffin, Laurel Evelyn Dyson, and Darlene Hoskins-McKenzie. 2012. Content is King: Malaysian Industry Experts' Point of View on Local Content for Mobile Phones. *Journal of Mobile Technologies, Knowledge & Society* 2012:1, 1-9.
- Bernama 2010. Telcos should have more cultural content: Rais, Star Publication (M) Bhd, Malaysia. Retrieved January 1, 2017, from https://www.thestar.com.my/news/nation/2010/01/ 19/telcos-should-have-more-cultural-content-rais/
- 5. Agnes Kukulska-Hulme and John Traxler. 2007. Designing for mobile and wireless learning. *Rethinking pedagogy for a digital age: Designing and delivering e-learning*, 180-192.
- Lim Keng Yaik. 2005. *Minister speech*, TM Forum, Sheraton Imperial KL, viewed 7th June 2011,<http://www.tmforum.org/WhyAttend/2719/h ome.html?linkid=31446>.
- 7. Jakob Nielsen (Ed.). 1990. *Designing User Interfaces for International Use*. Elsevier Science Publishers Ltd., Essex, UK.
- 8. RMK 11. 2016. Main Document of Malaysian Plan, Retrieved June 5, 2016 from http://rmk11.epu.gov.my/index.php/bm/muatturun-dokumen
- Hyo-Jeong So. 2012. Turning on mobile learning in Asia: Illustrative initiatives and policy implications. UNESCO Working Paper Series on Mobile Learning, UNESCO, Paris. Retrieved January 1, 2017 from http://unesdoc.unesco.org/images/0021/002162/21 6283E.pdf

10.Patricia Young. 2008. Integrating culture in the design of ICTs. *British Journal of Educational Technology* 39 :1, 6-17.

Main author biodata



Shamsul Arrieva Ariffin is a senior lecturer in the Faculty of Art, Computing, and Creative Industries at the University of Education Sultan Idris (UPSI), Tanjong Malim, Perak, Malavsia. He has more than 20 years working in ICT field. Prior to joining UPSI, he worked with various international companies involved in ICT fields, such as Commercial Union Assurance (UK based company), AIG Software International in software engineering, AIGT Data Centre in system engineering (USA based company) and NIIT (India based company) in IT training. He completed his PhD in Software Engineering from the Faculty of Engineering and Information Technology, University of Technology, Sydney, Australia. One of his research specializes in mobile learning with the aim being to assist users in bridging the digital gap between the cultural and technology aspects.

Gamification "Waste to Craft" Mobile Application Classroom

Cheng Kin Meng

Multimedia University Persiaran Multimedia, 63100 Cyberjaya, Selangor tidusnjay2@live.com

Koo Ah Choo

Multimedia University Persiaran Multimedia, 63100 Cyberjaya, Selangor ackoo@mmu.edu.my

Junita Shariza Mohd Nasir Fourth Author

Multimedia University Persiaran Multimedia, 63100 Cyberjaya, Selangor junita.shariza@mmu.edu.my

Abstract

Waste management has been a major issue in Malaysia community, campaigns and activities have carried out by different organizations. However, many of the citizens are unsure how to manage these wastes. This research is to educate the green community to be more aware of their waste management intention. A "flipgrid" assist mobile application (EdCraft) is used as a tool for a "waste to craft" classroom where participants will create a video, based on selected unused item and turn it into beautiful craft. To gamify this activity, ranking participants video content based on "likes" is implemented. User experience of the mobile app will be studied to improve the engagement and loyalty of the participants. Ultimately, improve waste management awareness.

Author Keywords

Gamification; waste management; mobile application; Human Computer Interaction;

ACM Classification Keywords

• Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

Human computer Interaction(HCI), Field studies, Social content sharing, Mobile devices.

Research Activity and Experimentation tools

Waste to craft activity:

This is an activity where participant create video content that they learn from an instructor in the classroom or video tutorial.

Tools:

A "Flipgrid" assist mobile application – where users can learn the usage of waste material and create their own video on creating useful or beautiful craft.

Usage: Using unused item or material to create beautiful or useful craft video content. Video content is gamified through ranking based on "likes"

Introduction

This short paper is an ongoing research under minifund project of Multimedia University on September 2018 and expected to finish on September 2019.

As waste management has been a serious issue in Malaysia, especially household waste in urban area (Pauze, 2016). Based on 11th Malaysia Plan 2016-2020, one of the outcome is to increase the recycling of household waste.

Mobile technology is a common possession nowadays, most of the Malaysian owns a smartphone. This advantage has increased the potential for ICT to act as a catalyst for development of new styles of learning and teaching (Hennesy, 2005). Many people are utilize 'mobile internet' to access with different content for video (YouTube), micro-blogging(Twitter) and even sharing useful tips with Pinterest (Pete, 2010)

Classroom does not just limited to traditional physical classroom. By taking this advantage, Edcraft is used to make a mobile classroom where the participant of this research can create their own video content through "waste to craft" activity

Waste to Craft Activity

As awareness campaign is important, as well as the activity to engage participant, waste to craft activity will taking part as the major part of the campaign activity. Participant will use their own creativity to create their own craft from the recyclable waste that they collected. The activity will take the advantage of the green community's motivation to create their own craft and by creating their own digital content and shared in the mobile application (**Flipgrid**)

Using Gamification to Engage Participation in Waste to Craft Activity

Gamification is often direct to many purposes (Don, M.H.W, 2014), it has been used in many different sizes of community to engage users participation. From smaller startup, mid-sized companies to fortune 500s and large companies. Most of the time, gamification is used in the world of business and marketing because it contains the three core-marketing concepts: engagement, brand loyalty and brand awareness (Garm, 2014). This core-marketing concepts will be useful to generate green community awareness and to draw members to engage in the waste management activity with a stronger participation rate.

Participation is often relate to social drive, the gamification model, Octalysis proposed by (Chou, 2015) described social influence and relatedness by ranking participants in rank, and it is used in the Nike + mobile application to engage participant to train more and develop a healthier body. As community education is lacking, the participation is a significant factor to engage more users to achieve the common goal for a green environment and gamification is the strategy to maximise the experience of waste management.

Preliminary study

A prototype is developed as in Figure 1 to test on a green community for better UX(User Experience).



Figure 1: Edcraft mobile application flow



Figure 2: In this image, the unused red packets are crafted into a fan by the participants. Image taken during the preliminary study

Mobile Application Design

Figure 1 shows Edcraft app flow, start from the upper left, first page where users can learn more about "waste to craft" or start activity. Top row shows the recycle information. Middle row is the tutorial of the mobile application and lower row is main feature of the app, flipgrid classroom creation and video tutorial for the material.

Research Design and Methodology

The research activity is based on the design of Classroom Action Research. Where it is about the inquiry from researcher in the environment to gather information on how well is the learner learn. Action research also concern about how to improve teaching or tools to solve problems.

In this research, researcher is taking the advantage of the green community to gather preliminary study data from the UX of the prototype of waste to craft mobile app. The preliminary study has taken the instrument for collecting research data as table 1 below:
 Table 1: Instruments for collecting research data

	Νο	Data Type	Data Collection Technique	Data Collection Instrument
	1	Green community response	Observation/Interview	Interview sheet
	2	Learning activities	Observation	Field note sheets

Data taken from the research will be further analyses in the next stage of the research.

Work Performed so far

Data collected are for further improve for the prototype of the next data collection and by getting the result from the questionnaire, Interview and observation, user Experience of the Edcraft the fun elements of gamification are to explore to achieve the expected outcome.

References

- Pauze, T., (2017) Low Awareness on Recycling Among Malaysians. https://www.thestar.com.my/news/nation/2017/08 /20/low-awareness-on-recycling-amongmalaysians/. Retrieved on 22 June 2018.
- Hennessy, S. (2005). Emerging teacher strategies for supporting. Cambridge, UK: University of Cambridge.
- 3. Sharma, Pete, and Barney Barrett. 2010. "Blended Learning: Using Technology in and beyond the Language Classroom." *Educational Technology & Society* 11((3)): 289–91.
- Yang, Don M. H. WenDick J.W, ChangYing-Tzu LinChe-Wei LiangShin-Yi. (2014). "Gamification Design for Increasing Customer Purchase Intention in a Mobile Marketing Campaign App." *International Conference on HCI in Business* HCIB 2014: pp 440-448.
- Garm Lucassen, S. J. (2014). Gamification in Consumer Marketing - Future or Fallacy? *Procedia -Social and Behavioral Sciences*, *148*, 194 – 202.
 Chou, Yu-kai. 2016. "Top 10 Marketing Gamification Cases You Won't Forget." https://yukaichou.com/gamification-examples/top-10-marketing-gamification-cases-remember/.
- O'Connor, K., Greene, H., & Anderson, P. (2006). Action Research: A Tool for Improving Teacher Quality and Classroom Practice. *Ontario Action Researcher*.
- Whitehead, J., & McNiff, J. (2006). Action Research: Living Theory. SAGE Publications. Retrieved from https://books.google.com.my/books?id=WzLY7IY8C GUC

Authors Biodata

First Author

Cheng Kin Meng Student, Multimedia University FACULTY OF CREATIVE MULTIMEDIA (FCM) R1053, FCM Building, Multimedia University, Persiaran Multimedia tidusnjay@gmail.com

Second Author

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Koo Ah Choo Associate Professor FACULTY OF CREATIVE MULTIMEDIA (FCM) R1053, FCM Building , Multimedia University, Persiaran Multimedia 63100, Cyberjaya, Selangor ackoo@mmu.edu.my

Third Author

Dr . Junita Shariza Binti Mohd Nasir Lecturer FACULTY OF CREATIVE MULTIMEDIA (FCM) 2027 , Multimedia University, Persiaran Multimedia 63100, Cyberjaya, Selangor junita.shariza@mmu.edu.my

Measuring Social Media of Malaysia Higher Education Institutions Based on User Engagement Metrics

Nor Azman Ismail

Teknologi Malaysia (UTM), 81310, UTM Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia. azman@utm.my

Mohd Sharul Hafiz Razak

School of Computing, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM), 81310, UTM Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia. sharulhafiz@utm.my

Farhan Mohamad

School of Computing, Universiti MaGICX, iHumen, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM), 81310, UTM Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia. farhan@utm.my

Abdullah Mohd Nawi

Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM), 81310, UTM Johor Bahru, Johor, Malaysia. abdullahmnawi@utm.mv

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here

Abstract

The purpose of this paper is to analyze the impact of all twenty Malaysia public universities in social media channel. We analyze how all twenty public Malaysia universities have been ranked based on user engagement in social media. User-generated contents from every selected official Facebook pages since November 2017 was collected and analysed. Engagement metrics based on number of likes, comments and shares were used to evaluate the effectiveness of social media posts. The results show that Universiti Sains Malaysia is the most engaged Facebook page compared to the other public Malaysia universities.

Author Keywords

University rankings; Social media; Facebook; Engagement metric; User-generated content.

ACM Classification Keywords

K.4 Computers and Society

Introduction

In many years, there is enormous percentage of people around the globe have access to social media [1]. There are millions of active users which are



Figure 1: Data Collection methodology of the study, The php programming tools have been deveoped to colleect all related information from selected Faceook pages based on 14 months of social interactions participating in online social pages, blogs and many more. Facebook is well-known social media and social networking services that have more than 2 billion active users on average [2]. Nowadays, social media plays an important role in branding, disseminating information and purposed as an official engagement space, being part of digital presence of a university. Social media impressions and reach analyses have been used in gauging the performances of the social media uses, where indications of number of likes, shares, and comments [3]. Nevertheless, there is no available tools to rank and analyze the social media engagements of the universities as an effective communication platform. The closest related tool is the uniRank Facebook University Ranking which aimed to provide a non-academic League Table of all world Universities based on the popularity (number of likes or fans count) of their main Facebook page [4].

The number of Facebook like is one of the metrics that organizations normally measure and report to their community, funders, and sponsors. Although knowing the size of the community is useful to a certain degree, the number of facebook like tells us little about the conversations and the actual level of engagement on social media. The analysis of university performance in social media, therefore, needs to go beyond this simple count of users. In order to get a better understanding of the level of engagement, the engagement metrics offers a much clearer picture as it allows universities to gauge how much engagement they are getting on the social media platform.

Hence, the aims of this study is to analyze the impact and investigate how all twenty public Malaysia universities have been ranked based on user engagement in social media

Methodology

Facebook Graph API has been used to retrieve all data from 20 official Facebook pages of public universities. Figure 1 shows the data collection methodology of the study. PHP programming tools have been developed to collect all related information from selected Facebook pages based on 14 months of social interactions. Data structured and sorting algorithm were used in order to rank and compare between engagement metrics from all university Facebook pages [5]. The following Facebook Engagement (*E*) metrics is used in analyzing the university social media engagements with the following parameters [6];

$$E = \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} L\right] + \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} C\right] + \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} S\right] + \left[\sum_{i=1}^{n} R\right]$$

Where;

- i. Like (*L*)– The number of people who click the like button on a post.
- ii. Comment (C)- The number of comments made on posts. These are visible on your page, found under the post the user commented on.
- iii. Share (S) The number of times user share posts to another wall, pages or groups. This will show in their timelines as well.
- *iv.* Reaction (*R*) People reactions on the post consist of *Like, Love, Haha, Wow, Sad* and *Angry*.

Result and Discussion

The result shows (table 2) the top 10 public university among 20 public universities in Malaysia is University Sains Malaysia (USM) with 280228 total engagement of people talk about followed by Universiti Malaysia Sabah (UMS) with 226967 total engagement of people talk about and the third rank is Universiti Teknologi MARA with 174480 total engagement of people talk about.

Rank	University	Engagement
1	Universiti Sains Malaysia	280228
2	Universiti Malaysia Sabah	226967
3	Universiti Teknologi MARA	174480
4	Universiti Putra Malaysia	159370
5	Universiti Teknologi Malaysia	139289
6	University of Malaya	124496
7	Universiti Sains Islam Malaysia	112371
8	Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka	98564
9	Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia	89592

Table 2: Malaysia Public Universities Engagement Rank

The ranking of this page is caused by the reactions of Facebook netizens of the university official Facebook Page daily post. From this result, USM gets the first rank because of a video posted about a talk show by USM Vice-Chancellor that managed to capture 7000+ reactions and 1.1k comments. The topic of the forum touch about love in womans. From small scale evaluations, majority of the high engagements were contributed during convocation sessons.

Conclusion

Social media plays important role in organization and personal branding and digital presence. Thus it is crucial to analyze the performance of the engagement made through this communication channel. Comparative studies and evaluations using post engagement of Facebook usage gathered from the Facebook Graph API itself really helps in researching and investigating the trends from real-world social media, enhancing the Facebook function and help the people to see the most popular public Universities in Malaysia.

Acknowledgements

We thank to Asrizal Arifuddin, Muhamad Asra Mohd Yusof, Muhammad Luqman Hakim Ahmad Mahir and Muhammad ZakrulNizam Zainithe for data collection and programming experiment, the VicubeLab Research Group and UTM Magicx for their support.

References

- Uhl A., Kolleck N., and Schiebel E. (2017). Twitter Data Analysis as Contribution to Strategic Foresight-The Case of The EU Research Project Foresight and Modelling for European Health Policy and Regulations (FRESHER). European Journal Futures Research 5(1), 2-16.
- Statista, Number of daily active Facebook users worldwide as of 3rd quarter 2018, Retrieved January 2, 2019 from https://www.statista.com
- BİLGİN, Y. (2018). The Effect of Social Media Marketing Activities on Brand Awareness, Brand Image and Brand Loyalty. Business & Management Studies: An International Journal, 6(1).
- uniRank, Colleges and Universities on Facebook. 2018. Retrieved January 27, 2019 from https://www.4icu.org/facebook/

- 5. Nor Bahiah Hj. Ahmad, Dayang Norhayati Abang Jawawi, Zalmiyah Zakaria. 2014, Data Structures and Algorithms. Johor: Desktop Publisher
- Klipfolio, Understand which posts are most effective in your campaigns. 2019. Retrieved January 20, 2019 from https://www.klipfolio.com/

Authors:

Nor Azman Ismail is an accociate professor in Human Computer Interaction (HCI) and head of VicubeLab Research Group at the Faculty of Engineering, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM)

Mohd Sharul Hafiz Razak is an IT officer and a research student within the Faculty of Engineering, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM). His thesis is concerned with academic website.

Farhan Mohamad is a Deputy Director of Corporate Affairs and a senior lecturer at Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM).

Abdullah Mohd Nawi is a senior lecturer and Assistant Dean (External & Global Engagement) for the Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities at Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM)

Brain Activation Study on Autistic Children

Nurshara Fazreen Mazlan

Computer Information Sciences Department, Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS nurshara_21833@utp.edu.my

Wan Fatimah Wan Ahmad

Computer Information Sciences Department, Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS fatimhd@utp.edu.my

Tong Boon Tang

Electrical and Electronic Engineering Department Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS

tongboon.tang@utp.edu.my

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

Mental disorder is described as a mental or behavioral pattern that leads to personal functioning impairment. Currently, there is a lack of study to measure the patient's cognitive activities with learning disabilities. Therefore, this paper aims to present a result of an experiment that has been conducted in order to identify the brain activity of children with Autism Spectrum Disorder. The experiment involved 7 participants by using functional Near Infrared Spectroscopy. Four mobile apps have been selected for the experiment. MATLAB & Simulink are used to analyze the raw data. The results have shown that application with animated pictures and more colorful interface can increase the ASD children's interest in playing the app and the effectiveness of their learning experience.

Author Keywords

Autistic children; brain monitoring activation; mobile application; attention span; learning disabilities.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Interaction design, empirical studies in interaction design.



Figure 1: Mean average of Brain Activation of Channel 1



Figure 2: Mean average of Brain Activation of Channel 2

Introduction

Mental disorder is described as a mental or behavioral pattern that leads to personal functioning impairment [1]. Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) is one of the top list of mental disorder epidemic is the developmental disorders. The number of children diagnosed with ASD are increasing worldwide over the years. Currently, there is a lack of study to measure the patient's cognitive activities with learning disabilities. This is important in order to increase their interests in learning and in aiding them in the process of expanding their cognitive skills as they suffer from cognitive disabilities. Hence, the objective of this paper is to present a result of an experiment in order identify the brain activity of children with ASD.

Related studies

Several researchers have conducted on brain studies by using several neuroimaging techniques such as pet scan, Electroencephalogram (EEG) and functional magnetic resonance (fMRI) [2]. Another popular technique that is often used by international researchers is also a non-invasive neuroimaging technique similar to fMRI which is known as the functional near infrared spectroscopy (fNIRS). So far, there hasn't been any published paper on the usage of fNIRS to investigate the brain activity of children with ASD in Malaysia. The use of fNIRS varies based on the purpose of the study and has many advantages as it is able to measure the attention of a patient and assess their performance while carrying out an activity. With this kind of technology, researchers are able to assist ASD patients to improve their disabilities by understanding them directly by studying their brain activities.

[3] started to delve into studying the brain activities and the development of children with ASD and infants that have a risk of having ASD. The study is conducted using a non-invasive neuroimaging technique called the functional near-infrared spectroscopy (fNIRS) which works by observing the oxygenated and deoxygenated hemoglobin concentration changes at different areas of the brain [4].

Methodology

An experiment has been conducted to identify the brain activity. 7 participants aged between 6 to 12 years old diagnosed with mild ASD were tested with 4 different mobile applications. The applications are based on unique characteristics and attributes. App A is purely based on real live human pictures and videos; App B also uses real live pictures as their guiz similarly to the App A; App C contains activities on picture exchange communication system and App D focuses on teaching social stories and visual schedules by using a visual support app to improve the autism children's socially appropriate behaviours. The participants have to wear a headset equipped with 2 channels, to represent the left brain and the right brain. The results are depicted by averaging all the 7 participants' brain activation from the two channels.

Results

The mean value varies due to the time taken for each subject to finish the app and depending on their attention span on each application. These are shown in Figure 1 and Figure 2. App D had the highest mean average activation. The results have shown that application with animated pictures and more colorful interface have increased the ASD children's interest in playing the app and the effectiveness of their learning experience. This is consistent with the study conducted by [5].

Conclusion

This study shows the potential of using Neuroimaging technology such as fNIRS in determining the brain activation based on the hemoglobin concentration changes to see the effectiveness of an app towards ASD patients in retaining the children's attention and interest. ASD children are attracted to animated pictures with colorful interfaces.

References

1. WHO. 2014. Social determinants of mental health. WHO Press, World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland.

2. Razali, N., & Wahab, A. 2011. Dynamic analysis of critical features in EEG for motor imitation among Autistic children. Recent Researches in Education: Proceedings of the 10th WSEAS International Conference on Education and Educational Technology (EDU '11), Penang, Malaysia, 3-5 October 2011: 174-179.

3. Vanderwert, R. E., & Nelson, C. A. 2014. The use of near-infrared spectroscopy in the study of typical and a typical development. *Neuroimage*, 85(1), 264–271.

4. Karim, H., Schmidt, B. Dart, D, Beluk, N and Huppert, 2012. T. Functional Near-infrared Spectroscopy (fNIRS) of Brain Function during Active Balancing Using a Video Game System. *Gait Posture.* (2012 Mar) 35(3): 367–372.

5. Aisyah A.M., Eizwan Y. & Riaza M.R. 2014. Assistive Technology for Children with Autism Spectrum Disorder on Emotion Understanding: A Preliminary Study. 12-15.

Biodata

Nurshara Fazleen Mazlan was a student of Universiti of Teknologi PETRONAS at Seri Iskandar, Perak since 2014. She pursued her Bachelor's Degree (Hons) in Business Information Systems majoring in Knowledge Management. Her focus was mostly on the study of the human brain using the Optical Topography Technology also known as the functional Near-Infrared Spectroscopy (fNIRS). Her first interest in the research began during her internship in Japan for Student Industrial Project (SIP) under the company, Hitachi Itd.

Ts Dr Wan Fatimah Wan Ahmad is an associate professor with 25 years of experience as an academia. She is currently the Acting Head of Center of Social Innovation (CoSI) at Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS, Malaysia. She obtained her PhD from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia. Her research interests include topics on Multimedia, human-computer interaction, mathematics education, e-learning and mobile learning. She is currently leading several research grants from Ministry of Science Technology & Innovation and Ministry of Higher Education, Malaysia. She has commercialized several mobile App in the app store. She won several awards in National and International levels of exhibition and commercialized few products.

Dr Tong Boon Tang received his PhD and BEng (Hons) degrees from the University of Edinburgh. Currently, he is the director at the Institute of Health and Analytics for Personalized Care, UTP, Malaysia. His research interests are in biomedical instrumentation, from device and measurement to data fusion. He serves as an editorial board member of the Journal of Medical Imaging and Health Informatics and a Co-chair of the IEEE Circuits and Systems Society Malaysia Chapter.

Towards Interactive Mobile Augmented Reality

Meng Chun Lam Nazatul Aini Abd Majid Siti Soleha Muhammad Nizam Nur Asylah Suwadi

Mixed Reality and Pervasive Computing Lab, Centre of Artificial Intelligent Technology, Faculty of Information Science and Technology, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, 43600 Bangi Selangor Malaysia. Iammc@ukm.edu.my nazatulaini@ukm.edu.my sitisoleha1610@gmail.com sylah94@gmail.com

License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.

Mohamed Jafar Sadik

Faculty of Computer Science

and Information Technology,

University Tun Hussein Onn

mohamad.jvp@gmail.com

Malaysia, Parit Raja, Malaysia.

Abstract

Augmented reality (AR) is an interesting technology which could overlay virtual information on the real world and it proven has certain advantages on different area such as education, engineering, design etc. However, traditional AR lack of interactive between user and AR environment. It is either simple browsing or passive viewing only. Hence, this paper discussed the previous and ongoing studies which embedded different interaction techniques to enable user to have a rich interaction with the AR environment. The function and usefulness of the AR application will be increased by having the interaction technique.

Author Keywords

Human computer interaction; Interaction Technique; mobile augmented reality; interactive augmented reality

ACM Classification Keywords

• Human-centered computing~Mixed / augmented reality • Human-centered computing~Interaction techniques

Introduction

Augmented Reality (AR) technology able to blend the digital information with the real-world environment. An easy understand example is the Pokémon GO AR game

where player could see the 3D virtual Pokémon animated in the real-life outdoor physical area [8]. In general, AR platform includes projection[6], wearable[9] and smartphone[1]. Projection and wearable AR is not in the mainstream vet due to the projection AR requires a huge empty place and sophisticated setup. Even though with the recent emerging of AR Smart Glasses technology such as MagicLeap, users can have a free-hands interaction and make the AR interaction interesting; however, the device is costly and not widely available. On the other hand, smartphone has a very high penetration rate. In Malaysia, there were 75.9% of the phone user are using the smartphone [3]. The availability of the smartphone makes the mobile augmented reality more feasible and popular in the current research.

Research in Mobile Augmented Reality

The traditionally marker-based AR limited to simple interaction like moving and rotating the 3D model using the marker. It is more for viewing purpose only, modifying or direct interaction with the content is minimum [2]. Hence, this paper aims to discuss the exploration of the interaction techniques in the mobile AR (MAR) platform for user to interact with the AR environment. The research will be discussed in this paper includes a training guidance system [10], an alphabet learning application for the children [5], a mobile AR that allows user to experience the chemistry experiment (AR Chemistry Lab)¹, tangible and spatial interaction for the kitchen design purpose¹ [7]. The researches mentioned above have explored different kind of interaction techniques. It consisted gaze [10], menu type User Interface (UI) [5], tangible [7] and spatial awareness interaction technique [7].

In research [10], a MAR was developed to study the possibility of MAR in product disassemble training. Stereoscopic view was implemented to display a realistic 3d view to the user, hence, user can perceive the depth information and judge the position of the 3D model. The 3D content helps user to retain training knowledge. The system architecture used the combination of smartphone with virtual reality case instead of the augmented reality glasses. This solution is cheap and easy to be widely implemented in the different contexts. However, this setup eliminates the touch interaction where user cannot reach the phone's screen while being mounted in the virtual reality case. The interaction could be possibly applied includes speech, gaze, remote controller or even direct manipulation with hand. A simple gaze interaction was selected in the study which user can select the 3D dice menu to trigger the disassemble steps animation. Then the user can perform the disassemble process on the physical product by following the animation. Even though it is not a fancy interaction technique, but it is feasible to select the 3D dice menu (Figure 1).



Figure 1: 3D dice menu UI with gaze selection

The menu type interaction, which is a common and simple UI, was selected in the study of [5] is due to the

¹ It is an ongoing research.



Figure 2 A simple page by page content navigation with menu type interaction applied so that children can digest it easily.[5]



Figure 3 User can put the distilled water into the volumetric flask by holding and turning a physical card board.



Figure 4 Spatial awareness interaction technique with the menu selection [7]

application focuses on the children. The research found out additional interaction rotation and scaling of the 3D model seems trivial to adult, but it brings out the interest of children to have longer attention towards the app (Figure 2). Meanwhile, AR Chemistry Lab focuses on the students in the secondary school. Hence, a nonconventional interaction, natural interaction that mimic the real-life interaction using tangible interaction concept is adopted (Figure 3). We expect the students can have more engagement toward the app and improve their learning with the involvement of physical movement interaction. An experiment will be performed to confirm it.

The research in [7] also using the tangible concept which the MAR target on the kitchen design. The physical medium of the tangible interaction is using the cube and card. The physical cube serves as the kitchen cabinet design while the card represents the color or kitchen's accessory design. Naturally, cube consists six faces which minimum six marker/ selection can be attached. Hence, different cabinet designs can be selected easily by rotating the cube. Other than that, when the colors/accessory cabinet will change accordingly as illustrated in the Figure 5.

Kitchen design is strongly related to the space which kitchen area need to be measured so that the kitchen designer could determine the size of cabinet to meet the measurement. With the technology of Tango/AR Core[11], ARKit[4] etc, an indoor spatial awareness augmented reality application can be easily been implemented. Figure 4 illustrates a spatial awareness interaction technique which the virtual 3D kitchen cabinet can be directly displayed and snapped to the wall around the kitchen area. Thus, the user does not require to use a marker to associate with the 3D model and adjusting the 3D model to align with the wall. Meanwhile, the color and accessories selection can be done through the normal menu selection.



Figure 5: Tangible box and card interaction[7]

Acknowledgements

This work was supported by the Ministry of Higher Education Grant [FRGS/1/2018/ICT01/UKM/02/5].

References

- ARSHAD, H., CHOWDHURY, S.A., CHUN, L.M., PARHIZKAR, B., and OBEIDY, W.K., 2016. A freezeobject interaction technique for handheld augmented reality systems. *Multimedia Tools and Applications 75*, 10, 5819-5839.
- BILLINGHURST, M. and LEE, M., 2012. Multimodal Interfaces for Augmented Reality. In *Expanding the Frontiers of Visual Analytics and Visualization*, J. DILL, R. EARNSHAW, D. KASIK, J. VINCE and P.C. WONG Eds. Springer London, London, 449-465. DOI= http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4471-2804-5_25.
- 3. COMMISSION, M.C.A.M., 2018. HAND PHONE USERS SURVEY 2017.

- 4. DILEK, U. and EROL, M., 2018. Detecting position using ARKit. *Physics Education* 53, 2, 025011.
- MAJID, N.A.A., ARSHAD, H., and YUNUS, F., 2018. CHILDREN AND TEACHER'S INTERACTION FOR ENGLISH PRE-LITERACY USING MOBILE AUGMENTED REALITY. *International Journal 3*, 15, 71-78.
- MINE, M.R., VAN BAAR, J., GRUNDHÖFER, A., ROSE, D., and YANG, B., 2012. Projection-based augmented reality in Disney theme parks. *IEEE Computer 45*, 7, 32-40.
- NIZAM, M., SOLEHA, S., LAM, M.C., ARSHAD, H., and SUWADI, N.A., 2018. A Scoping Review on Tangible and Spatial Awareness Interaction Technique in Mobile Augmented Reality-Authoring Tool in Kitchen. *Advances in Multimedia 2018*.
- PAAVILAINEN, J., KORHONEN, H., ALHA, K., STENROS, J., KOSKINEN, E., and MAYRA, F., 2017. The Pokémon GO experience: A location-based augmented reality mobile game goes mainstream. In Proceedings of the 2017 CHI conference on human factors in computing systems ACM, 2493-2498.
- RAUSCHNABEL, P.A., BREM, A., and RO, Y., 2015. Augmented reality smart glasses: definition, conceptual insights, and managerial importance. Unpublished Working Paper, The University of Michigan-Dearborn, College of Business.
- SADIK, M.J. and CHUN, L.M., 2017. Stereoscopic vision mobile augmented reality system archite cture in assembly tasks. *Journal of Engineering and Applied Sciences* 12, 8, 2098-2105.
- VOINEA, G.-D., GIRBACIA, F., POSTELNICU, C.C., and MARTO, A., 2018. Exploring Cultural Heritage Using Augmented Reality Through Google's Project Tango and ARCore. In *International Conference on VR Technologies in Cultural Heritage* Springer, 93-106.

Authors Biography



Meng Chun Lam joining as a senior lecture of the Faculty Information Science and Technology, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia in 2015. His areas of interest are in the Human-Computer Interaction, Mixed Reality and Mobile Application.



Nazatul Aini Abd Majid is a lecturer at the center for Artificial Intelligence Technology (CAIT), Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia. Her research interest includes augmented reality, mobile applications in education, multivariable statistical

process monitoring and cloud computing applications.



Siti Soleha Muhammad Nizam is a master student at the Univsersiti Kebangsaan Malaysia (UKM). Her areas of interests are in the interaction technique, human computer interaction.



Nur Asylah Suwadi currently studied at the Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia doing her Master program in Information System with the research topic on collaborative augmented reality.



Mohamed Jafar Sadik received his M.S. in from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia. He is currently working on his Ph.D. in computer science from Universiti Tun Hussein Onn Malaysia, his research involves enhancing the privacy and

security for saving and retrieving images over cloud storage.

Nurturing Confidence via Design Thinking

Afdallyna Fathiyah Harun

University Teknologi MARA Shah Alam 40500 Shah Alam afdallyna@tmsk.uitm.edu.my

Abstract

Design Thinking presents itself as an ideation tool that helps construct an intangible idea into a tangible form. Stemming from the design discipline, it gives designer a thought process on idea feasibility. The nature of the process ties in closely with the fundamentals of HCI which is to empower user. This paper discusses how Design Thinking can play a role in research work as well as classroom learning activities. The goal is to conceptualize Design Thinking as more than a design tool but also serve as a tool for self-empowerment among the designers themselves.

Author Keywords

Design Thinking; HCI; empowerment; creativity

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Miscellaneous

Introduction

Design Thinking (DT) is originally conceived to explore how design, science, technology and rationalism could offer a strategic solution to a problem at hand (Cross, 2001). The problem is conceived as Wicked Problem not because it is ghastly but rather recognizing that user problem is indeed complex and multi-dimensional (Rittel & Webber, 1973). DT again gained prominence



Figure 1: HPI-Design Thinking Model (Source: Hasso-Plattner Institute, 2018)

Phase	nase Description	
	Understand how user	
	experience specific	
Empathise	phenomenon using	
	probes, observation or	
	interviews	
	Analyse user	
Dofino	responses into a series	
Ideate	of behavioural	
	patterns	
	Brainstorm as many	
	solutions as possible	
	to address user issues	
	Create a paper	
Prototype	prototype to showcase	
	idea in tangible form	
	User give feedback	
Test	based on demo of	
	paper prototype	
Table 1: De	sign Thinking Phases	

in 1990s thanks to the Kelley brothers. Their book, 'Creative Confidence' (Kelley & Kelley, 2013) has been instrumental to many designers and developers as it showcases the many success stories of projects adopting DT. But more than that, the stories strike at the very core on how DT could change oneself to be more empathic and inspired to bring change on a larger scale. This has also affected the author similarly which is to be discussed in the following sections.

Design Thinking in Research

The author is currently researching on how food images could be used to simulate taste experience. DT method was adopted (see Figure 1 and Table 1) where her team used tools such as probes, paper and video prototypes to uncover related user challenges and user preferences. One key strength of DT is the involvement of users where by engaging with them, we were able to uncover pain points when tourists were trying to enjoy Malaysian food. Pictures definitely paint a thousand words but lacks in capturing food taste. They opine that at times they felt underwhelmed with the food taste, hence tricked by the picture but also overwhelmed and blame the picture for not doing the food justice (Bossert et al, 2010; Tuleu, 2011). The participants excitedly shared their Malaysian food experience which made us appreciate our local cuisine more. The users have found our prototype idea (i.e. ingredients list, user facial expression when eating) particularly educational and practical as it gives them a better sense of what to expect from Malaysian food. Nevertheless, they have cautioned us that less is more and to be tactical as to not take way the element of curiosity which is instrumental in the travel experience. The DT process took place in 2 ¹/₂ days, complete with analysis. The simplicity of the process and the use of

cheap tools were able to generate invaluable data for the research. It gives depth to the phenomena compared to the conventional user studies and provide faster feedback. More significantly, it has helped us to truly appreciate user process in the travel experience and has motivated us even more to market Malaysian cuisine through a digital platform, serving as a window to taste experience.

Design Thinking in Teaching and Learning

Analysis on previous student projects implied that their end products were not well-favoured by users as often students left the testing at the very end of the project development. The author then compelled current students to create paper prototypes of their system concept. The students were then asked to use the prototypes to collect as many user feedbacks as possible which is used to refine design requirements as well as iterate product design accordingly. The students appreciated the engagement with users as the users gave critical comments as well as useful ideas that they have overlooked. Their excursions took 5 days complete with analysis. Not only were the students able to finalize their product design with favourable feedback from the users but their attitude changed significantly. They blossomed from being shy and insecure to individuals who are confident, unreserved, more willing to take risks and has greater sense of ownership to their project.

Conclusion

DT is a powerful tool as it involves iterations of thought process as well as allowing designers to trust their judgement. DT when used properly holds great promise in nurturing creative confidence in oneself (Kelley & Kelley, 2013).

References

- Cross, Nigel. "Designerly ways of knowing: Design discipline versus design science." Design issues 17.3 (2001): 49-55.
- Rittel, Horst WJ, and Melvin M. Webber. "Dilemmas in a general theory of planning." Policy sciences 4.2 (1973): 155-169.
- 3. Kelley, Tom., & Kelley, David. (2013). Creative confidence: Unleashing the creative potential within us all. New York, NY: Crown Business.
- Hasso-Plattner-Institute (2018). What is Design Thinking. Retrieved from https://hpiacademy.de/en/design-thinking/what-is-designthinking.html
- Bossert, Sabine, Reinhold G. Laessle, Caroline Meiller, Matthias Junker, Heiner Ellgring, and Karl-Martin Pirke. "Visual palatability of food in patients with eating disorders and dieting women." Behaviour research and therapy 29, no. 4 (1991): 337-341.
- Tuleu, C. (2011). Acceptability and palatability methods available for assessment. In Workshop on Paedriatric Formulations II for Assessors in National Regulatory Agencies. http://www.ema.europa.eu/docs/en_GB/document

_library/Presentation/2012/01/WC500121607. pdf. Published.

Afdallyna Fathiyah Harun earned her PhD in User Experience design from University of Nottingham, UK in 2014. She is currently a senior lecturer in Universiti Teknologi MARA Malaysia. She has over 10 years of experience in Participatory Design (PD) and Design Thinking (DT) with studies being conducted in UK and Malaysia. Her current research interest includes taste digitization, technology appropriation, participatory design and children technology interaction. She recently presented her DT work to Japan Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications (Government Information Systems Planning Division, Administrative Management Bureau). She is also recognized as Design Thinking Innovation Ambassador by d.school Malaysia. She continues to apply DT and PD in her research work as well as in embedding them into the teaching and learning experience.

User-Driven Research via Participatory Design

Afdallyna Fathiyah Harun

University Teknologi MARA Shah Alam 40500 Shah Alam afdallyna@tmsk.uitm.edu.my

Abstract

Envisioning technology use by potential stakeholders requires the input from the users themselves. Often their input is sought on a ready-made design. Users often have little say how the technology can be envisage as designers merely regard them as endusers. Participatory Design allow users to co-design with the researcher/designer by engaging them into the actual development process through tinkering and prototyping. This paper discusses the author's PD experience and considerations for researchers venturing into PD.

Author Keywords

Participatory Design; co-design; technology design; user-driven research

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Miscellaneous

Introduction

HCI has often emphasized the importance on technology ease of use and perceived usefulness (Venkatesh & Davis, 2000). We too ought to consider the *appropriate* use of technologies as it becomes inherently desired for a complimentary focus on the characteristics of both the technology and elements of



Figure 1: Some products from PD studies



Figure 2: Participants in action

the broader social structures which support certain kinds of user behaviours. Such understanding could be achieved through Participatory Design.

Participatory Design

Participatory Design (PD) is a technique that involves users in a series of design process to acquire their needs and preference of a system design. It epitomises the collaborative nature of design (Muller, 2003) where participants engage in a social design activity rather than producing individual thoughts. There are no specific steps or approaches to elicit user requirements, however the flexibility does not undermine the aim of designing *with* users rather than *for* users. Participants could give ideas through low-fidelity mock-ups, roleplaying activities (Druin, 1999), or "quick-and-dirty" video animation to simulate the patterns of interaction with a new interface (Muller & Kuhn, 1993). Their feedback and behaviour helps in identifying their needs and desires for a useful or even productive system use.

Children in Participatory Design

Many researches have investigated children as technology designers (Hemmert et al., 2010; Chipman, 2011) with Allison Druin often regarded as a pioneer in PD with children. Children are capable in producing comprehensible artwork allowing for valid analysis (Hemmert et al., 2010). They too are more creatively overt and can easily express themselves through roleplaying and prototype design. With PD, children could play the roles of user, tester, informants and design partner (Druin et al., 1998; Druin, 2002).

Requirements for Participatory Design

PD requires an iterative and pragmatic approach where every lesson learnt from previous engagement with participants needs to be addressed and embedded into the design plan. In short, researcher need to pragmatically change the study design as to reflect the ongoing findings of the studies. The study would iterate until a desirable result is achieved and therefore, researchers need to be committed and constantly ready with analysis in pursuing this method.

A general series of activities involving prototyping, role-playing and brainstorming should be planned as to allow a sense of structure to the data collection process but needs to be tweaked pragmatically to respond to the ongoing feedback. Henceforth it is often advised by PD practitioners that those unfamiliar with PD should foremost join an ongoing PD study to truly appreciate the pragmatic nature of the method.

As PD often involve a group of 5 - 7 users to a single researcher, video camera should be utilized to capture user behaviours and user verbal thoughts. Here therein lies the true user requirements in addition to the design products produced by them.

The Impact of PD on Research

User exploration on technology use would involve a process of creativity. They may appropriate the technology by internalising them from external influences and inner desires, showing themselves through apparently 'intuitive' acts. In short, they would use the technology as they see fit based on previous experience and how it would suit with environment's context of use. PD would enable us to understand emerging practice and consideration from the use of technologies. It also projects a sense of humility knowing that we do not have all the answers and the need to collaborate with users on idea conception.

References

- Chipman, G., Druin, A., Beer, D., Fails, J. A., Guha, M. L., & Simms, S. (2006, June). A case study of tangible flags: a collaborative technology to enhance field trips. In Proceedings of the 2006 conference on Interaction design and children (pp. 1-8). ACM.
- Druin, A., (2002). The role of children in the design of new technology. Behaviour and Information Technology 21 (1), 1–25.
- Druin, A., Bederson, B., Boltman, A., Miura, A., Knotts-Callahan, D., & Platt, M. (1998). Children as our technology design partners. In A. Druin, (Eds). The Design of Children's Technology (pp. 51-72) Morgan Kaufmann, San Francisco
- 4. Druin, Allison. "Cooperative inquiry: developing new technologies for children with children." Proceedings of the SIGCHI conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems. ACM, 1999.
- Hemmert, F., Hamann, S., Löwe, M., Zeipelt, J., & Joost, G. (2010, June). Co-designing with children: a comparison of embodied and disembodied sketching techniques in the design of child age communication devices. In Proceedings of the 9th International Conference on Interaction Design and Children (pp. 202-205). ACM.
- Muller, M. & Kuhn, S. (1993). Participatory Design, Magazine. Communications of the ACM – Special Issue Participatory Design, 36 (4), 24-28.
- Muller, Michael J. "Participatory design: the third space in HCI." Human-computer interaction: Development process 4235 (2003): 165-185.
- Venkatesh, Viswanath, and Fred D. Davis. "A theoretical extension of the technology acceptance model: Four longitudinal field studies." Management science 46.2 (2000): 186-204.

Afdallyna Fathiyah Harun earned her PhD in User Experience design from University of Nottingham, UK in 2014. She is currently a senior lecturer in Universiti Teknologi MARA Malavsia. She has over 10 years of experience in Participatory Design (PD) and Design Thinking (DT) with studies being conducted in UK and Malaysia. Her current research interest includes taste digitization, technology appropriation, participatory design and children technology interaction. She recently presented her DT work to Japan Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications (Government Information Systems Planning Division, Administrative Management Bureau). She is also recognized as Design Thinking Innovation Ambassador by d.school Malavsia. She continues to apply DT and PD in her research work as well as in embedding them into the teaching and learning experience.

The Needs of Sustainable Visualization in Switch Management - A Position Paper

Erman Hamid Nazrulazhar Bahaman Syarulnaziah Anawar Zakiah Ayop Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka, Hang Tuah Jaya, 76100 Durian Tunggal, Melaka, Malaysia erman@utem.edu.my nazrulazhar@utem.edu.my syarulnaziah@utem.edu.my zakiah@utem.edu.my

Abstract

This study focus on the needs of sustainable visualization in switches network management, which is motivated by the constraints of the existing text based interfaces who are not well suited to all type of users. The gap to the study was derived from the previous reading, which was later confirmed by a simple interview conducted on 10 selected users. The results of the interviews were compared with the previous reading, and a theory model then developed, followed by a proposal to the further study on how a visualization techniques can stimulate sustainability, which finally helps usability.

Author Keywords

Visualization; Sustainability; Usability; Switch Management.

ACM Classification Keywords HCI

Introduction

Switch is an internetworking hardware used as an intermediate devices between a network to a subnetwork [1], or to another network [2]. Any data that goes into the network through the router, will go to the switch before going through it and reach the computers that use the network. This means the switch is the hardware that receives every network data and it can be used as a part of the network monitoring tool [2].

Unfortunately, data that going through the ports on the switch is delegated and displayed with abstract and technical representation, usually in the form of numbers, text and command prompt. This creates problems for users that have less network technical literate [3]. Using switches with command prompt and reading data in numerical texts representation is not something easy for them, more appropriate and interactive techniques are required to enable all types of users to understand the data visualization [4].

The needs of visualization element

The literature review focuses on the research paper related to visualization problem and technique proposed in understanding switch management. From the 20 major papers selected [5][6][7][8][9][10][11] [12][13][14][15][16][17][18][19][20][21][22][23][24], majority of them are hardly focusing on the needs of proper visualization technique in displaying the interfaces.

The discussion below is divided into three sections; (1) The problem of the existing interface, (2) Why Visualization? (3) Technique that being proposed and their (4) Contributions. Based on the analysis conducted on previous studies, several important criteria are integrated and concluded into the solution of the problem. As a result, theory model of proper a visualization technique for switch management are proposed in the Diagram 1.



Figure 1: Technique in visualizing data.

The interview

A brief interview session then conducted with 10 selected users consisting of 5 non-technical participants and 5 computer technical participants. Each participant is shown by an existing switch management interface that displays the information about the data that passing through each switch port. The data that being collected are all about their understanding of the data visualization, and their views on how to improve the interface capabilities.

The five non-technical participants are all agree that the existing interface is very unhelpful for non-technical user and they did not have any idea on what they saw on the screen. The other five technical participants; 2 of them categorized as a network technical literate participants have no problem to understand the interface shown, while the other 3 technical participants (other than computer networking area) still faced problems to understand the interface.

The model theory

Sustainability means that users are able to fully understand the interface that is presented through appropriate visualization methods. In general, the participant in the interview session expects an effective and sustainable visualization on the interface that could drive to usability. This finding appears to be in line with the problems and solution proposed from the previous reading. It encourages the development of the theoretical model of the switch management interface as shown in Figure 2 below:



Figure 2: Model theory of network data visualization.

Future study

An advanced study is recommended, with a focus on researching the appropriate visualization design for a switch port interface, which seeks to help user's sustainability to further achieve usability.

Acknowledgements

Authors are grateful to Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka for the support in doing this projects.

References

- S. Tricaud, K. Nance, and P. Saadé, "Visualizing network activity using parallel coordinates," Syst. Sci. (HICSS), 2011 44th Hawaii Int. Conf. on. IEEE., pp. 1–8, 2011.
- [2] D. H. Wong and S. Ramadass, "An Adaptable Innovative Network Data Visualization Framework," asiafi.net, 2011. [Online]. Available: http://www.asiafi.net/meeting/2011/summerschoo l/manuscripts/S-1-4-asiafi2011.pdf. [Accessed: 20-Mar-2014].
- [3] D. M. Best, S. Bohn, D. Love, A. Wynne, and W. a. Pike, "Real-time visualization of network behaviors for situational awareness," *Proc. Seventh Int. Symp. Vis. Cyber Secur. - VizSec '10. ACM.*, pp. 79–90, 2010.
- [4] Q. Liao, A. Striegel, and N. Chawla, "Visualizing graph dynamics and similarity for enterprise network security and management," ... Vis. Cyber Secur., pp. 34–45, 2010.
- [5] E. Dimara and A. Bezerianos, "The Attraction Effect in Information Visualization," *Vis. ...*, vol. 23, no. 1, pp. 471–480, 2016.

- [6] N. Cao and W. Cui, *Introduction to Text Visualization*. 2016.
- S. Kriglstein, G. Wallner, and M. Pohl, "A user study of different gameplay visualizations," *Proc.* 32nd Annu. ACM Conf. Hum. factors Comput. Syst.
 - CHI '14, pp. 361–370, 2014.
- [8] M. Maurus, J. H. Hammer, and J. Beyerer, "Realistic heatmap visualization for interactive analysis of 3D gaze data," *Proc. Symp. Eye Track. Res. Appl. - ETRA '14*, pp. 295–298, 2014.
- J. Boy, R. A. Rensink, E. Bertini, and J. D. Fekete, "A principled way of assessing visualization literacy," *IEEE Trans. Vis. Comput. Graph.*, vol. 20, no. 12, pp. 1963–1972, 2014.
- [10] C. Kumar, B. Poppinga, D. Haeuser, W. Heuten, and S. Boll, "Assessing end-user interaction for multi-criteria local search with heatmap and iconbased visualizations," *Proc. 1st ACM SIGSPATIAL Int. Work. MapInteraction*, pp. 13–19, 2013.
- [11] L. Paolino, M. Romano, G. Tortora, and G. Vitiello, "Spatial data visualization on mobile interface - A usability study," 2013 9th Int. Wirel. Commun. Mob. Comput. Conf., pp. 959–963, Jul. 2013.
- [12] M. R. Jakobsen and K. Hornbæk, "Interactive visualizations on large and small displays: the interrelation of display size, information space, and scale.," *IEEE Trans. Vis. Comput. Graph.*, vol. 19, no. 12, pp. 2336–45, Dec. 2013.
- [13] M. Håkansson and P. Sengers, "Beyond Being Green : Simple Living Families and ICT," Beyond being green simple living Fam. ICT. Proc. SIGCHI Conf. Hum. Factors Comput. ACM., pp. 2725–2734, 2013.
- C. Disalvo, J. Redström, and M. Watson,
 "Commentaries on the special issue on practiceoriented approaches to sustainable HCI," ACM Trans. Comput. ..., vol. 20, no. 4, pp. 1–15, 2013.
- [15] B. Knowles, L. Blair, M. Hazas, and S. Walker, "Exploring sustainability research in computing: where we are and where we go next," *Proc. 2013 ACM Int. Jt. Conf. Pervasive ubiquitous Comput. ACM.*, pp. 305–314, 2013.
- [16] Z. Bi, "An integrated environment for visualization of distributed wireless sensor networks," *Control*

Autom. (ICCA), 2013 10th IEEE ..., pp. 312-317, 2013.

- [17] M. Stephen, W. Franklin, O. Patrick, A. Peter, and A. Elizabeth, "Classifying Program Visualization Tools to Facilitate Informed Choices: Teaching and Learning Computer," *Int. J. Comput. Sci. Telecommun.*, vol. 3, no. 2, pp. 42–48, 2012.
- [18] F. C. B. Williams and J. C. Roberts, "Classifying Visual Knowledge Representations : 23 Years On," 2012.
- [19] G. Peters, K. Bunte, M. Strickert, M. Biehl, and T. Villmann, "Visualization of processes in selflearning systems," 2012 Tenth Annu. Int. Conf. Privacy, Secur. Trust, pp. 244–249, Jul. 2012.
- [20] A. Braeken, L. Sterckx, A. Touhafi, Y. Verbelen, and F. Guening, "Comparative study of electronic visualisation techniques for e-learning," *Proc. 2012 IEEE Glob. Eng. Educ. Conf.*, pp. 1–8, Apr. 2012.
- [21] M. Savva, N. Kong, A. Chhajta, L. Fei-Fei, M. Agrawala, and J. Heer, "ReVision: Automated Classification, Analysis and Redesign of Chart Images," Proc. 24th Annu. ACM Symp. User interface Softw. Technol. (UIST '11), pp. 393–402, 2011.
- [22] B. chul Kwon, W. Javed, N. Elmqvist, and J. S. Yi, "Direct Manipulation Through Surrogate Objects," *Proc. Int. Conf. Hum. Factors Comput. Syst.*, pp. 627–636, 2011.
- [23] B. Vogel, A. Kurti, M. Milrad, and A. Kerren, "An Interactive Web-Based Visualization Tool in Action: User Testing and Usability Aspects," 2011 IEEE 11th Int. Conf. Comput. Inf. Technol., pp. 403– 408, Aug. 2011.
- [24] D. Rodríguez-Fernández, P.-A. H. Akø, and T. P. Plagemann, "Leveraging self-description to visualise autonomic networks," *Proc. 8th ACM Int. Conf. Auton. Comput. - ICAC '11*, p. 183, 2011.

About the authors:

Erman Hamid received his Bachelor in Information Technology from Universiti Utara Malaysia, and his Master in Information Technology from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia. He is currently a Senior Lecturer in Department of Computer System and Communications, Faculty of Information and Communication Technology (FTMK), Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM), Melaka, Malaysia. His main research interest are Network Management, Network Visualization and Internet of Things (IoT).

Nazrulazhar Bahaman (Dr.) is a PhD holder in Computer Networks and Security focuses in the area of IPv6 Migration, graduated from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia. He completed a BEng. (Hons) degree in Electrical Electronic and a Master Science of Information Technology in Networking, Universiti Teknologi Mara. He is currently a Senior Lecturer at Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka.

Syarulnaziah Anawar (Dr.) holds her Bachelor of Information Technology from Universiti Utara Malaysia, Master of Computer Science from Universiti Putra Malaysia, and PhD in Computer Science from Universiti Teknologi Mara, Malaysia. She is currently a Senior Lecturer in the Department of Computer System and Communication at Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka. She is a member of the Information Security, Digital Forensic, and Computer Networking (INSFORNET) research group. Her research interests include humancentered computing, participatory sensing, mobile health, usable security, and societal impact of IoT.

Zakiah Ayop graduate with Bachelor of Computer Science and Master of Science in Distributed Computing from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and Universiti Putra Malaysia respectively. Currently, she is a Senior Lecturer in Department of Computer System and Communications, Faculty of Information and Communication Technology (FTMK), Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM), Melaka, Malaysia. Her research interest is Quality of Information (QoI), Internet of Things (IoT) and Distributed Computing and Networking.

User Interaction Model in Heritage Adaptive Augmented Reality

Norshuhada Shiratuddin

Universiti Utara Malaysia 06010 UUM Sintok, Kedah Malaysia shuhada@uum.edu.my

Tenh Hock Kuan

Universiti Malaysia Kelantan 16300 Bachok Kelantan Malaysia tenhhockkuan@gmail.com Universiti Utara Malaysia 06010 UUM Sintok, Kedah

Syamsul Bahrin Zaibon

Malaysia syamsulbahrin@uum.edu.my

Siti Mahfuzah Sarif

Universiti Utara Malaysia 06010 UUM Sintok, Kedah Malaysia ctmahfuzah@uum.edu.my

Abstract

Adaptive Augmented Reality technology responds to the user's unique characteristics, interests and context for real time information. Thus, providing better support for the user interaction experience. However, in literature there are lack of distinctive definition of a model required by AR technology to adapt to local context and environment. Furthermore, users' needs are crucial in enhancing their interaction experience in AR system. This study aims to propose a formal definition of adaptive AR model in the forms of user, context, interaction and environment models. This model will integrate storytelling mechanism to enhance users' experience and will be implemented in a heritage archaeology field. Under these perspectives, visitors will engage throughout the AR heritage guided visit, which will provide them valuable personal experience. It is found that, the importance of user experience especially in the form of affect and emotion is key in the successful design of heritage application interfaces.

Author Keywords

Augmented Reality; Adaptive; Storytelling; User interaction.

ACM Classification Keywords

Human-centered computing: Interaction design

 License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
Introduction

Adaptive Augmented Reality (A2R) is augmented reality applications that respond to the user's unique characteristics, interests and context with useful and effective real time information. Users' needs are crucial in enhancing their interaction experience. Currently the emerging technology allows such better support. However, some of the problems identified are the lack of definition of a model required by such technology to adapt to local context and environment, and the lack of established design guidelines [3,4,8]. Furthermore, storytelling as a mechanism to enhance users' experience while interacting in such augmented reality space is rarely included [2]. It should also be noted that the importance of user experience especially in the form of affect and emotion is a key issue in the successful design of heritage application interfaces [4,9]. Under these perspectives being able to engage visitors throughout an augmented heritage guided visit can provide valuable personal experience [4]. The personalization, adaptation and delivery of interpretation, and learning materials that best fit the visitors should be the center of design [11]. However, these are currently missing in the local setting of Malaysia [10]. Therefore, the main aim of this research is to propose a formal definition of such model in the forms of user, context, interaction and environment models. This model will then be implemented in a heritage archaeology field as a proof of concept.

Aim of Research

Based on the above discussions, the main aim of this research is to propose an Adaptive Augmented Reality (A2R) model in the forms of user, context, interaction and environment models. But, in this conference, only the user interaction model is discussed. Therefore, the

specific objective is to suggest the relevant user interaction model for the purpose of this heritage apps.

Concerned Research Questions

In particular, we are interested in answering these questions:

1. What are the components of the formal adaptive augmented reality model definition with respect to the local user, context, interaction and environment models?

2. Are there any effects of including the storytelling elements on the proposed adaptive augmented reality model?

3. Is there any positive influence of the local context adaptive augmented reality model on user experience?

Theoretical Framework

This study is centered on the User Experience (UX) theory proposed by Don Norman. Three dimensions of UX that are most often suggested in the reviewed literature: user, product and interaction. As Forlizzi and Ford [6] and Forlizzi and Batterbee [5] suggest, a simple way to think about what influences experience is to think about the components of a user-product interaction, and what surrounds it. Arhippainen and Tähti [1] define UX as the experience that a person gets when he/she interacts with a product in particular conditions. The user and the product interact in the particular context of use that social and cultural factors are influencing. The user has the aspects including values, emotions, expectations and prior experience. The product has influential factors, for example, mobility and adaptivity. All these factors influence the experience that user-product interaction evokes.

Hassenzahl and Tractinsky [7] emphasize again these three dimensions. They define UX as a consequence of a user's internal state (predispositions, expectations, needs, motivation, mood, etc.), the characteristics of the designed system (e.g. complexity, purpose, usability, functionality, etc.) and the context (or the environment) within which the interaction occurs (e.g. organizational/social setting, meaningfulness of the activity, voluntariness of use, etc.).

User Interaction Model in A2R

One of the specific objectives of this study is to suggest the relevant user interaction model in heritage A2R. In general, augmented reality has proposed several types of interaction techniques such as 3D interactions, natural interactions, tangible interactions, spatial awareness interactions and multimodal interactions. Siti Soleha et al. [12] studies multimodal interaction techniques in AR environment and conclude that gesture, speech and touch are frequently used to interact with virtual objects. Bekele et al. [13] classifies types of interfaces (interaction) for AR in cultural heritage into six; tangible, collaborative, device-based, sensor-based, hybrid, and multimodal interfaces. They found out that tangible and collaborative interfaces are used more often to interact with virtual information. though alternatives do exist. Damala et al. [4] presented the concept of A2R, which recommends AR content for museum visits. Based on data from sensors system, the status of visitors such as their behavior (gaze, gesture) and physiological signals (heart rate and other bio-signals) can be exploited for adaptive content recommendation, although this feature involves significant technical challenges.

Aim of Research

We thank the Malaysia Ministry of Education for providing this FRGS grant with SO Code: 14164, and Universiti Utara Malaysia for the research management.

References

- Leena Arhippainen and Marika Tähti. 2003. Empirical evaluation of user experience in two adaptive mobile application prototypes. MUM 2003. Proceedings of the 2nd International Conference on Mobile and Ubiquitous Multimedia, 27–34.
- Federica Dal Falco and Stavros Vassos. 2017. Museum Experience Design: A Modern Storytelling Methodology. The Design Journal 20, sup1: S3975--S3983.
- Areti Damala and Nenad Stojanovic. 2012. Tailoring the Adaptive Augmented Reality (A 2 R) museum visit: Identifying Cultural Heritage professionals' motivations and needs. Mixed and Augmented Reality (ISMAR-AMH), 2012 IEEE International Symposium on, 71–80.
- Areti Damala, Nenad Stojanovic, Tobias Schuchert, Jorge Moragues, Ana Cabrera, and Kiel Gilleade.
 2012. Adaptive augmented reality for cultural heritage: ARtSENSE project. Euro-Mediterranean Conference, 746–755.
- Jodi Forlizzi and Katja Battarbee. 2004. Understanding experience in interactive systems. Proceedings of the 5th conference on Designing interactive systems: processes, practices, methods, and techniques, 261–268.
- Jodi Forlizzi and Shannon Ford. 2000. The building blocks of experience: an early framework for interaction designers. Proceedings of the 3rd conference on Designing interactive systems: processes, practices, methods, and techniques, 419–423.

- Marc Hassenzahl and Noam Tractinsky. 2006. User experience-a research agenda. Behaviour & information technology 25, 2: 91–97.
- L Johnson, S Adams, and H Witchey. 2011. NMC Horizon Report: 2011 Museum Edition. Austin, Texas.
- 9. Donald A Norman. 2004. Emotional design: Why we love (or hate) everyday things. Perseus Books.
- Low Wei Shang, Tan Gek Siang, Mohd Hafiz bin Zakaria, and Muhammad Helmy Emran. 2017. Mobile augmented reality applications for heritage preservation in UNESCO world heritage sites through adopting the UTAUT model. AIP Conference Proceedings, 30003.
- Kingkarn Sookhanaphibarn and Ruck Thawonmas. 2009. A movement data analysis and synthesis tool for museum visitors' behaviors. Pacific-Rim Conference on Multimedia, 144–154.
- Siti Soleha, M. N., Rimaniza, Z. A., Nurhazarifah, C. H., Meng Chun, L., Haslina, A., and Nazatul Aini, A. M. 2018. A Review of Multimodal Interaction Technique in Augmented Reality Environment. *International Journal of Advanced Science Engineering Information Technology*, 8, 4-2, 1460-1469.
- Mafkereseb Kassahun Bekele, Roberto Pierdicca, Emanuele Frontoni, Eva Savina Malinverni, and James Gain. 2018. A Survey of Augmented, Virtual, and Mixed Reality for Cultural Heritage. ACM J. Comput. Cult. Herit. 11, 2, Article 7 (March 2018).

Design of Smart Building Automation System for 6LoWPAN Network: The Platform Structure

Nin Hayati Mohd Yusoff

Centre for Graduate Studies (PPS) Faculty of Information and Communication Technology Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka, Hang Tuah Jaya, 76100 Durian Tunggal, Melaka, Malaysia ninhayati.mohdyusoff@gmail.com

Norharyati Harum Center for Advanced Computing Technology

Nurul Azma Zakaria

Technology Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka, Hang Tuah Jaya, 76100 Durian Tunggal, Melaka, Malaysia

azma@utem.edu.my

Abstract

Recently, the development of Internet of Thing (IoT) applications growth rapidly in multiple areas especially in Smart Building Automation (SBA). Most of SBA applications are embedded devices (ED) and 6LoWPAN network allows the EDs to connect and exchange information directly (end to end communication) with other ED on the Internet. However, the interoperability (interaction between the ED and human) become main issue in implementation, integration and evaluation of SBA. Therefore, this study focuses on the development of SBA based on 6LoWPAN infrastructure protocol that allows the flexible setup and full control that addresses algorithmic, networking and application development. This paper focuses in details the phase 1 of Waterfall model challenges by presenting four (4) critical aspects that need to be considered and analyzed in the development of SBA, and three (3) types of human computer interaction (HCI).

Author Keywords

Smart Building; 6LoWPAN; Internet of Thing

ACM Classification Keywords

Human Computer interaction (HCI); Hardware; Network.

Introduction

SBA is the automatic centralized control of a building's heating, lighting, ventilation and air conditioning, and other systems through a home management system [1]. By having the latest smart building technologies, including IoT to serve the needs in the potential future, the infrastructure especially the network performance in the building, become the serious challenge to be taken care of. In addition, most of IoT applications are embedded devices (ED) which are categorized by low power, low memory, low cost [2].

Due to the high demand of ED connected over Internet, Internet Protocol version 6 (IPv6) Low Power Area Network (6LoWPAN) were introduced by Internet Engineering Task Force (IETF). 6LoWPAN is a wireless embedded Internet that used a standard link network for IEEE 802.15.4 in frequency range 2.5 GHz band [3] [4]. For this features, 6LoWPAN is a future network and become effective communication between each ED [1]. The main objective of SBA platform is to provide technical support and facilities which can be fully utilized by multidisciplinary developers of 6LoWPAN applications focused on automation and energy efficiency for smart/green buildings.

The aims of this study as

follows: i) Global integration and interoperability, ii) High scalability, iii) 6LoWPAN orientation and compliance and iv) Technology independence.



Figure 1: The Waterfall Development Model However, dealing with large number of EDs and technologies become a serious problem in achieving the interoperability among different manufacturers in multiple environments and systems [5][6]. Therefore, this study focuses on the design of SBA for 6LoWPAN network to achieve effective communication (interoperability) between the EDs and systems. The contribution of this paper is to present the proposed platform structure in designing of SBA based on phase 1 (Waterfall model) objective. The rest of this paper is organized as follows. Section II presents the methodology used in this study, whereas section III explains the result and the last section presents the conclusions and future work.

Methodology

In this section the Waterfall development model [7] is used as a guideline for gathering, evaluating, and reporting information in development of SBA. The development process of SBA involves five (5) phases as presented in Figure 1. However, this paper presents only the result of the first phase of Waterfall model i.e the requirement analysis phase.

Phase 1: Requirement Analysis

The initial phase of this study focused on literature review and benchmarking processes to address the following challenges:

- Comparative analysis of existing systems and solutions
- Comparative analysis of existing standards and protocols

Result

Figure 2 shows the design of SBA platform structure. SBA addresses a holistic approach such as algorithmic, networking and application development aspects of 6LoWPAN system. Based on comparative study in [8]-[10], the requirement analysis for development of SBA involves four (4) critical aspects. First, the network (IPv6/6LoWPAN) requirement and infrastructure of buildings and how IPv6 can integrate heterogeneously with other technologies (sensors, actuators, mobile devices and human interaction). Second, the 6LoWPAN application requirement and its standardization towards a new embedded application protocol for building automation. Third, novel algorithmic models and scalable solutions for energy efficiency and radiationawareness, data dissemination, localization and mobility. Finally, the requirement analysis of rapid development and integration of building management applications. Besides, SBA platform structure were design based on three (3) types of human computer interaction (HCI) as below:

- The room environment response to human presence. (Example: The level of fan speed is controlled by room temperature and human position).
- Embedded device monitoring. (Example: Device is automatically switched off when the person leaves the room to save energy).
- User awareness. (Example: Standard touch screen in showing all information).

Conclusion and Future Work

This paper was intended to support the ongoing research project by analyzing the existing solutions to be considered for SBA development. It has explored existing platforms and solutions that could be relevant for SBA. Finally, this paper has presented the structure of SBA platform. SBA has the potential to be a platform in providing digital services in IoT implementation for Malaysia showcase for future wireless technologies. As future work, we want to analyse and present the implementation plan for SBA including the list of equipment and hardware, and deployment plan for SBA test bed.





Acknowledgment

This work is conducted under Fundamental Research Grant Scheme (FRGS) with reference number (FRGS/1/2018/ICT03/UTEM/02/2) by Ministry of Education Malaysia and Universiti Teknikal Malaysia, Melaka.

References

- P. P. Gaikwad, J. P. Gabhane, and S. S. Golait, "Survey based on Smart Homes System Using Internet-of-Things," Int. Conf. Comput. POWER, ENERGY, Inf. Commun., pp. 330–335, 2015.
- [2] S. Chen, H. Xu, D. Liu, B. Hu, and H. Wang, "A vision of IoT: Applications, challenges, and opportunities with China Perspective," *IEEE Internet Things J.*, vol. 1, no. 4, pp. 349–359, 2014.

- [3] Z. Shelby and C. Bormann, *6LoWPAN*: The Wireless Embedded Internet. 2009.
- [4] S. N. Han, Q. H. Cao, B. Alinia, and N. Crespi, "Design, implementation, and evaluation of 6LoWPAN for home and building automation in the Internet of Things," *Proc. IEEE/ACS Int. Conf. Comput. Syst. Appl. AICCSA*, vol. 2016– July, 2016.
- J. Lin, W. Yu, N. Zhang, X. Yang, H. Zhang, and W. Zhao, "A Survey on Internet of Things: Architecture, Enabling Technologies, Security and Privacy, and Applications," *IEEE Internet Things J.*, vol. 4, no. 5, pp. 1125–1142, 2017.
- [6] S. Li, L. Da Xu, and S. Zhao, "The Internet of Things: A Survey," *Inf. Syst. Front.*, vol. 17, no. 2, pp. 243–259, 2015.

- [7] W. W. Royce, "Managing the Development of Large Software Systems," *Proceedings, IEEE* WESCON, vol. 933, no. August, pp. 1–9, 1970.
- [8] A. Al-Fuqaha, M. Guizani, M. Mohammadi, M. Aledhari, and M. Ayyash, "Internet of Things: A Survey on Enabling Technologies, Protocols, and Applications," *IEEE Commun. Surv. Tutorials*, vol. 17, no. 4, pp. 2347–2376, 2015.
- [9] A. Bröring *et al.*, "Enabling IoT Ecosystems through Platform Interoperability," *IEEE Softw.*, vol. 34, no. 1, pp. 54–61, 2017.
- [10] M. Chernyshev, Z. Baig, O. Bello, and S. Zeadally, "Internet of Things (IoT): Research, Simulators, and Testbeds," *IEEE Internet Things J.*, vol. 4662, no. c, 2017.



Nurul Azma Zakaria, graduated with Bachelor of Engineering in Electronic Computer Systems and Master of Science in Information System Engineering from University of Salford and University of Manchester Institute of Science and Engineering (UMIST), UK respectively. She received her PhD in Information and Mathematical Sciences from Saitama University, Japan. As senior lecturer in Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM) and a member of Information Security, Digital Forensic and Computer Networking (INSFORNET) research group, she explores various research themes related to engineering and ICT, specifically in System-Level Design, Embedded System Design, Cyber-Physical System (CPS), Internet of Things (IoT), IPv6 Migration and 6LoWPAN.



Nin Hayati Mohd Yusoff, currently is a PhD student in the Faculty of Information and Communication Technology, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM). Her main research interest includes embedded system application and algorithms for 6LoWPAN network over Internet of Things. She received a Bachelor in Electrical Engineering (Information System) and Master in Technical and Vocational Education from Universiti Tun Hussein Onn Malaysia (UTHM). She is currently a senior lecturer at Jabatan Pengajian Politeknik. Malaysia.



Norharyati Harum, holds her Bachelor in Engineering, Master of Engineering and PhD in Engineering from Keio University, Japan. She has experience working in R & D department of Next Generation Mobile Communication at Panasonic Japan. She is currently a senior lecturer at Faculty of Information and Communication

Technology, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM). She is an accomplished inventor, holding patents to radio access technology invention, numbers of copyright of products using single board computer. She is now passionately training her students to invent projects/products using a single board computer and other IoT related technology.

Icon Recognition on Smartphone by Older Adults

Chui Yin Wong

Faculty of Creative Multimedia, Multimedia University, 63100 Cyberjaya, Malaysia. cywong@mmu.edu.my

Tengku Aizan Hamid

Malaysian Research Institute on Aging, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia. aizan@upm.edu.my

Rahimah Ibrahim

Malaysian Research Institute on Aging, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia. imahibrahim@upm.edu.my

Evi Indriasari Mansor

Department of Computer Science, Prince Sultan University, Saudi Arabia emansor@psu.edu.sa

Abstract

This paper aims to examine the icon recognition on smartphone for older adults. A mobile-user interaction study was conducted with 80 older adults in Malaysia on 12 selected icons of an Android OS phone. It was found that older adults having problems of recognizing 7 out of 12 icons that match with their meaning and its function. There is a mismatched between user expectation and the icon design of smartphone user interface. It is suggested that smartphone user interface designers need to consider the needs of older adults based on their semantic memory for improved usability.

Author Keywords

Older adults; icon recognition; smartphone user interface; Android OS, semantic memory.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Miscellaneous

Introduction

There is a rising ageing population worldwide. Malaysia will become an aged nation by 2035 [1]. Smartphone has become a ubiquitous communication tool for everybody, including older adults. Despite the cognitive demand of struggling to learn a new interaction mode, older adults have gradually joined the smartphone

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.



Figure 1: Twelve selected icons for the study.

'senior' user cohort. However, many older adults still have the fear of using smartphones due to the complexity of smartphone user interface, advanced features and some mobile apps. Usually icon design are the upfront user interface elements that users interact with to navigate around the smartphone. It is important to know how the older adults perceive and interpret the meaning of icon design. Hence, this paper aims to investigate how older adults perceive icon recognition with its meaning and function on smartphone.

Research Method Participants

Eighty Malaysian young older adults (40 male and 40 female), aged 60-74, were recruited to participate in the mobile-user interaction study in 2016. All of them had at least 3 months' experience of using a smartphone. Those who suffers serious physical or cognitive illness were excluded from participation in this study. Out of 80, 11 (13.75%) older participants were Apple iPhone users, the rest (n = 69, 86.25%) were Android OS users with different brands and models.

Selected Icon Design

This study is part of a larger mobile-user interaction study. Twelve (12) icon designs were selected from Android 5.0 Lollipop Design mobile operating system (OS) based on the Samsung S7 Edge test device (refer to Figure 1). The reasons of selecting this set of icons are based on the previous study [2].

The older adults were asked to fill-up part of a questionnaire for the 12 icons about their meaning, whether they had seen it before and also the function they would expect from the particular icon.

Results and Discussion

The results show that the highest percentage of answer matched correctly with the icon design are 'battery full' (96.3%), followed by 'camera' (70%), 'make a call' (72.5%), 'message' (67.5%), 'setting' (65%), 'Wi-Fi' (63.7%), 'WhatsApp' (58.7%), 'contact' (53.7%), 'Google Play Store' (38.8%), 'call back' (27.5%), 'photo' (20%), and 'gallery' (15%). It is expected the 'correct answer' is correlated with the answers of 'have seen before' because this triggers the older adults' semantic memory that they could recognize the particular icon design with its function and meaning.

Overall, the pair (in percentage) of 'correct answer' -'have seen before' are not correlated for icons such as 'photo' ['correct answer' (20.0%) - 'have seen before' (67.5%)]; 'Setting' ['correct answer (65%) – 'have seen before' (88.7%)]; 'Call back' ['correct answer' (27.5%) - 'have seen before' (63.7%)]; 'WhatsApp' ['correct answer' (58.7%) – 'have seen before' (93.7%)]; 'Contact' ['correct answer' (53.7%) – 'have seen before' (80%)]; 'Google Play Store' ['correct answer (38.8%) -'have seen before' (58.8%)]; and 'Wi-Fi' ['correct answer (63.7%) - 'have seen before' (91.2%)].' This implies that there is a mismatch between older adults' expectation and the icon design on the smartphone user interface, which deviated from the intended actions. To avoid such confusion, it is important for the smartphone UI designers to distinguish the icon design using different color, or add-in some additional design elements to differentiate the icon recognition.

Conclusion

In summary, to adhere to ISO 20282-1: Ease of Operation of Everyday Products [3], it is crucial for the smartphone UI designers and mobile apps developers to incorporate older adults' requirement and relate the icon design with their relevant prior experience and semantic memory [4, 5, & 6].

References

- Malaysia Healthy Ageing Society. (2012). Malaysia to be ageing nation by 2035. Retrieved April 11, 2018 from http://healthyageing.org/index.php/malaysia-tobe-ageing-nation-by-2035/
- Chui Yin Wong, Rahimah Ibrahim, Tengku Aizan Hamid & Evi I. Mansor (2018). Usability and design issues of smartphone user interface and mobile apps for older adults. In N. Abdullah, W. A. Wan Adnan, M. Foth (eds), *Proceedings of 5th International Conference of User Science and Engineering (i-USEr 2018), Communications in Computer and Information Science (CCIS)* 886, 93 - 104. Puchong, Malaysia, 28-30 August 2018. Singapore: Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-1628-9_9
- International Standards Organisation (2006). Ease of operation of everyday products – part 1: design requirements for context of use and user characteristics. ISO Standard 20282-1: 2006 (E). Geneva, Switzerland.
- Chui Yin Wong, Rahimah Ibrahim, Tengku Aizan Hamid and Evi I. Mansor (2018). Mismatch between adults' expectation and smartphone user interface. Malaysian Journal of Computing, 3(2), 138-153.
- Jing Zhang, Chengqi Xue, Zhangfan Shen, Xiaojiao Chen, Jiang Shao, Lei Zhou & Xiaozhou Zhou. (2016). Study on the effects of semantic memory on icon complexity in cognitive domain. In D. Harris (ed.), *International Conference on Engineering Psychology and Cognitive Ergonomics* (EPCE 2016), 147 - 157, 17-22 July 2016, Toronto, Canada. Cham: Springer Lecture Notes in

Computer Science, vol., 9736. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-40030-3_16

6. Norman, D. (1998). *The design of everyday things.* The MIT Press, London, United Kingdom.

Authors' Biodata

- Chui Yin Wong is Senior Lecturer at Faculty of Creative Multimedia, Multimedia University (MMU) in Malaysia. She is also a UX Consultant at Cnergy, a commercial arm for MMU.
- Dr Rahimah Ibrahim is Associate Professor at Faculty of Human Ecology at Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia.
- Professor Dr Tengku Aizan Hamid has been founding Director of MyAgeingtm (previously known as the Institute of Gerontology), Universiti Putra Malaysia since 2002. She has been instrumental in the development of gerontological research and education in Malaysia.
- Dr Evi Indriasari Mansor is an Assistant Professor at the Department of Computer Science, Prince Sultan University. Her areas of expertise are Human Computer Interaction (HCI), Gamification, Interaction Design & Children (IDC), User Experience (UX), and Multimodal Technologies & Interaction.

Mapping The Color, Mood And Music In A 3-Dimensional Model

Chen Woon Choong

Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology Universiti Putra Malaysia 43400, Serdang Selangor chen2205@yahoo.com

Dr Noris Binti Mohd Norowi

Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology Universiti Putra Malaysia 43400, Serdang Selangor noris@upm.edu.my

Abstract

Listening to suitable music is important as different types of music have different impacts on the listener's mood. Similarly, color has the capability of influencing one's mood and choice of music as well.. The relationship between color and music, color and mood, and mood and music can be established. However, up until now, the three items have been mostly represented as two dimensional (2D) model. In order to link all the three elements together, i.e. color-mood-music, multimodals are required to represent them. In this paper, a three dimensional (3D) model is proposed that integrates these three elements together for music recommendation. Questionnaires were developed and posted onto social media such as Facebook and Whatsapp. Analysis of results revealed that the relationship between color-mood and mood-color, color-music and music-color, and mood-music and musicmood were inconsistent, interestingly, it was found that there was association between specific colors to specific mood and specific musical genres. This is useful as it helps to retrieve musical genre using a single model rather than multimodals.

Author Keywords

Color; mood; music; 3D mapping.

Assoc Prof Dr Shyamala C

Doraisamy Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology Universiti Putra Malaysia 43400, Serdang Selangor shyamala@upm.edu.my

Dr Mas Rina Mustaffa

Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology Universiti Putra Malaysia 43400, Serdang Selangor masrina@upm.edu.my

ACM Classification Keywords

Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Scanned color; song list;feedback;history.

Introduction

Music is the combination of elements such as pitch, timbre, rhythm, dynamics, tempo, texture, melody and harmony in different ways to create different diversity of music. Choosing the appropriate music to enjoy is important as specific music has specific impact on mood as music has the potential to influence one's mood, feelings and thoughts [1, 2]. Other than music, colors are also capable of influencing the way one feels, thinks and behaves as well [3]. These three elements are interrelated as there are evidences to show music-color association linked to emotional states [4]. Odbert et al. (1942) found that choice of color chosen for the songs elicits the same emotions than for songs eliciting different emotions. Barbiere et al. (2007) also concluded that music-color association occur via the underlying emotion common to the two stimuli [5]. However, most of the researchers used multimodal to represent the relationship either color-music or color-mood or mood-music [6,7,8]. This paper studies the relationship between color to mood and mood to color, the relationship between color to music and music to color, and also the relationship between mood to music and music to mood. It aims to produce a 3D model integrating color, mood and music by: (1) exploring the consistency of the relation between color to mood and mood to color, mood to music and music to mood, color to music and music to color; and (2) proposing a 3D model representing color, mood and music in the X-axis, Y-axis, and Z-axis respectively.

The remainder of this paper is organized as follows: Section 2 provides a brief overview of related work; Section 3 provides the insight of the experimental design; Section 4 describes the results and discussion; Finally, Section 5 concludes the paper and future work.

2 Related Work

Color is one of the most effective factors in a space that affects the way one expresses their emotions [9]. Warm colors, red and yellow, having long-wavelength are more anxiety involving higher arousal and displeasure. Cool colors, blue and green, having short-wavelength are less anxiety, less arousing but more pleasant [9,10] Figure 1. Color can be used to associate with music. Faster music in the major mode was associated with lighter, more saturated, yellower colors. Slower music in the minor mode was associated with darker, desaturated, bluer colors [8]. [11] found that "gray" was associated with sadder music whereas warm colors (red and yellow) and cool colors (blue and green) were associated with happier music. Music has the potential to influence one's mood, feelings and thoughts [2,3]. Music that has faster pieces are categorized as happy or positive sounding whereas slower pieces are deemed to be sad or negative [12,13].



Figure 1. 2-D model of color-mood relation.

Establishing the relationship between mood and color according to musical preference was carried out by Moon et al. [7]. Pesek et al. [6] proposed a new novelty of using multimodal approach to associate emotions and colors perception to music with the inclusion of user context.

Research has been done on multimodal such as combining multimodal in data representation for music genre classification [14] and integrating user context with emotional and color perception of music for affective music information retrieval [6] as users seemed to process information faster and better when presented in multiple modalities [15]. However, integrating multimodal methods and its architectures need to be explored further and wider in its combinations [16]. To solve this problem a unimodal that integrates the association of color, mood and music into a 3D model.

3 Experimental Design

The aim of the survey was to find out if there was consistencies pertaining to relationship between color-mood (vice versa), color-music (vice versa), and mood-music (vice versa). A 3-dimensional model is to be created based on the data collected. Questionnaires were created and

distributed via social media such as Facebook and Whatsapp to all contacts. Samples of questions asked included, demographic information and consent such as "My cooperation in the research is voluntary and I can stop at any point", "Please describe your current mood by selecting the most appropriate color", "Music 1. Click the following link to listen to the audio sample. Then choose the closet mood you are feeling from the list below. You may replay the audio sample several times, but please choose only ONE closest answer". A grace period of one week was given to all participants to respond and as closing time. A total of 191 responded but only 50 completed all the questions. However, after cleaning the data, only 43 were eligible and considered for the analysis. Data collected was then tabulated for deeper analysis.

4 Results and Discussion

It was found that there are indeed inconsistent relation between color-mood (vice versa), colormusic (vice versa), and mood-music (vice versa). This suggests that relation between two elements are not reversible. However, only the data obtained from color-mood-music association question were used to map into a 3-Dimensional model.

To compute a 3D model for the three elements, the ten (10) adjectives describing the mood were defined by Winer [17] and assigned a pair of values equivalent to pleasure and arousal by Russel [18] as in Table 1. For music scaling factor, each music genre was assigned a value obtained from Sample et al. [19] as in Table 2.

Mood	Pleasure	Arousal
Fear	-0.64	0.60
Sad	-0.63	-0.72
Нарру	0.81	0.51
Calm (Untroble)	0.79	-0.01
Joy	0.72	0.48
Angry	-0.51	0.59
Relax	0.68	-0.46
Disgust	-0.60	0.35
Excited	0.62	0.75
Romantic	0.87	0.54

Table 1. Definition of Emotions in Terms of pleasure and arousal

Music Genre	Scaling Factor
Classical	0.88
Рор	0.532
Rock/Metal	0.773
Inspirational Religious	0.393
R & B Soul	0.715
Eaasy Listening (Relax)	0.471

Table 2. Music Genre and Scaling Factor

Element mood is represented using Thayer's Mood Model [20] where X axis represents the valence and Y axis represents the arousal. Each mood is assigned values [18]. Z axis represents the musical genres. From the analysis it was found that specific color was related to a specific mood and a particular mood was associated to a particular musical genre, as shown in Table 3. To retrieve a musical song, the color will be check with the color column to see what mood and its associated song.

Color	Mood	Music Genre	Coordinates		
			X(Val	Y(Arou	Z(Music
			ence)	sal)	Genre)
Red	Angry	Rock Metal	-0.51	0.59	0.773
Orange	Нарру	Рор	0.81	0.51	0.532
Yellow	Excited	Рор	0.62	0.75	0.532
Green	Relax	Easy Listening	0.68	-0.46	0.471
Blue	Calm	Classical	0.79	-0.01	0.88
Purple	Joy	Рор	0.72	0.48	0.532
Pink	Romant	R&B Soul	0.87	0.54	0.715
	ic				
Brown	Disgust	Rock/Metal	-0.6	0.35	0.773
Black	Fear	Rock/Metal	-0.64	0.6	0.773
Gray	Sad	Inspirational	-0.63	-0.27	0.393

Table 3. Tabulated values for 3D graph.

A 3D graph is created using X axis, Y axis, and Z axis representing valence, arousal, and music as shown in Figure 2.



Figure 2. A 3D model showing the relation for color, mood and music.

Each color is associated to a particular mood represented by X-axis (Valence) with a value from -1 to 1 and by Y-axis (Arousal) with a value from -1 to 1 too. However, each music or genre represented by the Z-axis (Music) is given a value from 0 to 1. Depending on the color that is being scanned in, a list of songs from that particular category will respond accordingly. For example, if the user scan in green color, a relax mood will be displayed and a list of songs related to easy listening musical genre category will be recommended and displayed for user to choose the most likeable and suitable song to play.

5 Conclusions and future work

The overall aims of this work was to investigate the relationship between color-mood and moodcolor, color-music and music-color, mood-music and music-mood and to establish a 3D model representing color, mood and music in recommending suitable songs that match the color of the ambience and the mood of users. The analyses presented revealed that there is a consistent relationship between the three elements. A 3D model representing color, mood and music have been proposed and will be further verified by another user study.

This model can be used to scan color or ambience of a room, instead of typing as typing has the tendency of creating typo error. In future, color extraction techniques such as color histogram will be used to identify the color as scanned which will then relate to the 3D model in order to identify the mood and suggest appropriate musical genres.

Since the current survey only consisted of 10 colors, more colors will be considered in future work. Color is cultural sensitive as different culture might experience different emotion [21] and this is reserved for future work. Music genres selected were rather limited and future work should include more.

References

- Ahmad, N., & Ahmad, N. (2015). Impact of Music on Mood : Empirical Investigation Impact of Music on Mood : Empirical Investigation, (November).
- 2 Khan, M., & Ajmal, A. (2017). Effect of Classical and Pop Music on Mood and Performance, 7(12), 905–911.
- 3 Broeder, P., & Scherp, E. (2018). Colour Preference of Online Consumers: a Cross-Cultural Perspective. *Marketing – from Information to Decision Journal*. https://doi.org/10.2478/midi-2018-0001
- 4 Odbert, H. S., Karwoski, T. F., & Eckerson, A. B. (1942). Studies in synesthetic thinking: I. Musical and verbal associations of color and mood. *The Journal of General Psychology*, 26, 153-173.
- Barbiere, M. J., Vidal, A., & Zellner, D. A. (2007). The color of music: Correspondence through emotion. *Empirical Studies of the Arts*, *25*(2), 193–208. https://doi.org/10.2190/A704-5647-5245-R47P
- 6 Pesek, M., Strle, G., Kavčič, A., & Marolt, M. (2017). The Moodo dataset: Integrating user context with emotional and color perception of music for affective music information retrieval. *Journal of New Music Research*, *46*(3), 246–260. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/09298215.2017.133</u> <u>3518</u>

- 7 Moon, C. B., Kim, H., Lee, H. A., & Kim, B. M. (2014). Analysis of relationships between mood and color for different musical preferences. *Color Research and Application*, 39(4), 413–423.
- 8 Palmer, S. E., Schloss, K. B., Xu, Z., & Prado-Leon, L. R. (2013). Music-color associations are mediated by emotion. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, *110*(22), 8836–8841. https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1212562110
- 9 Kurt, S., & Osueke, K. K. (2014). The Effects of Color on the Moods of College Students. *SAGE Open*, *4*(1), 215824401452542. https://doi.org/10.1177/215824401452542
 3
- 10 Valdez, P., & Mehrabian, A. (1994). Effects of Color on Emotions. *Journal of Experimental Psychology: General*. https://doi.org/10.1037/0096-3445.123.4.394
- Barbiere, M. J., Vidal, A., & Zellner, D. A. (2007). The color of music: Correspondence through emotion. *Empirical Studies of the Arts*, *25*(2), 193–208. https://doi.org/10.2190/A704-5647-5245-R47P
- 12 Gagnon, L., & Peretz, I. (2003). Mode and tempo relative contributions to "happy-sad" judgements in equitone melodies. *Cognition and Emotion*.

https://doi.org/10.1080/02699930302279

- Juslin, P. N., & Lindström, E. (2010). Musical expression of emotions: Modelling listeners' judgements of composed and performed features. In *Music Analysis*. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-</u> 2249.2011.00323.x
- Oramas, S., Barbieri, F., Nieto, O., & Serra, X. (2018). Multimodal deep learning for music genre classification. *Transactions of the ISMIR*. https://doi.org/10.5334/tismir.10
- 15 van Wassenhove, V., Grant, K.W., Poeppel, D., 2005. Visual speech speeds up the neural processing of auditory speech. Proc. Nat. Acad. Sci. 102, 1181–1186.
- 16 Turk, M., (2013) Multimodal interaction: A review. Pattern Recognition Lett. (2013), http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/ j.patrec.2013.07.003
- 17 Winer, B. J. Statistical principles in experimental design. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1962
- 18 Russell, J. A. (2018). Evidence for a Three-Factor Theory of Emotions Evidence for a Three-Factor Theory of Emotions, 6566(September 1977). https://doi.org/10.1016/0092-6566(77)90037-X

- 19 Sample, G., Fricke, K., Fricke, K. R., & Herzberg, P. Y. (2017). Personality and Selfreported Preference for Music Genres and Attributes in a Journal of Research in Personality Personality and self-reported preference for music genres and attributes in a German-speaking sample. Journal of Research in Personality, 68(September 2018), 114–123.
- 20. Thayer, R. E. (1989). The biopsychology of mood and arousal. Oxford University Press
- 21 De Bortoli, M., & Maroto, J. (2001). Colors across culture:Translating colors in interactive marketing communications. In R. Russow & D. Barbereau (Eds.), *Elicit 2001: Proceedings of the European Languages and the Implementation of Communication and Information Technologies (Elicit)conference* (pp. 3-4). UK: Paisley University Language Press.

Biodata

Chen Woon Choong

Chen Woon Choong is currently pursuing his PhD in Human Computer Interface from the Universiti Putra Malaysia. He had a Master in Information Technology from the Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia and a Bachelor of Computer Science (Honours) from the University of Windsor, Windsor, Ontario, Canada. He had 16 years of lecturing experiences with Informatics College, Kuala Lumpur, five years with Lagenda University, University of Linton program and six years with Segi University, Kota Damansara. He mainly taught Database Management Systems, Software Engineering, Multimedia, Human Computer Interfaces. He was one of the Blackboard trainers in Segi University. Besides music, he is also interested in database and software engineering. Currently, his research area is in music related to color and mood.

Dr. Noris Mohd Norowi

Dr. Noris Mohd Norowi is a Senior Lecturer at the Multimedia Department, Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology, Universiti Putra Malaysia. She has a PhD in Computer Music from the University of Plymouth, United Kingdom, as well as a Master of Science in Multimedia Systems and a degree in Computer Science (Majoring in Multimedia), both from the Universiti Putra Malaysia. She belongs to the Human-Computer Interaction Research group, where the focus of her research include Artificial Intelligence in Music, Immersive Technologies, Sound Cognition, and Sound Synthesis.

Dr. Mas Rina Mustaffa

Dr. Mas Rina Mustaffa received her BCompSc degree (Multimedia) and MSc degree (Multimedia Systems) in 2003 and 2006 respectively. She received her PhD for studies in Content-based Image Retrieval (CBIR) in 2012. All of the three degrees are from Universiti Putra Malaysia (UPM), Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia. Her primary research interests are multimedia systems and applications, Content-based Image Retrieval (CBIR), image processing, pattern recognition, and interactive multimedia.

She is currently a Senior Lecturer at the Department of Multimedia, Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology, UPM. She has authored several publications in various journals and proceedings and presented at many conferences. She also has been actively involved in several international conferences as organising and technical program committee.

Dr. Mas Rina is a member of the ACM, IACSIT, IEEE, MBOT, and PECAMP.

Associate Professor Dr. Shyamala C. Doraisamy

Shyamala Doraisamy is an Associate Professor at the Department of Multimedia, Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology, University Putra Malaysia (UPM). She received her PhD from Imperial College London in 2004, specializing in the field of Music Information Retrieval and a member of the Digital Information Computation and Retrieval research group at UPM. Her research interest includes Multimedia Information Processing, focusing in particular on Audio Content Analysis and Applications for Music and Health Informatics. She is a committee member of the Malaysian Society of Information Retrieval and Knowledge Management (PECAMP), and was the General Chair of the 2018 Fourth International Conference on Information Retrieval and Knowledge Management (CAMP'18). She is currently a Visiting Scholar at the School of Computer Science, University of Lincoln, United Kingdom.

Technology-Based Intervention for Children with Learning Difficulties

Muhammad Hazig Lim Abdullah

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka hazig@utem.edu.my

Syariffanor Hisham

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka syariffanor@utem.edu.my

Mohd Hafiz Zakaria

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka hafiz@utem.edu.my

Shahril Parumo

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka shahrilparumo@utem.edu.my

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

Children with learning difficulties such as Attention Deficit and Hyperactive Disorder (ADHD), Dyslexia, Autism and Down Syndrome (DS) require different approach to teaching and learning. This is due to the fact that many of these children are struggling with multiple disabilities and multiple learning difficulties. Study investigating the use of ICT among people with special needs is getting more attention and interest by researchers in Malaysia. However, many of these studies are focusing on the development of assistive products which only cater to single disability and learning difficulty whilst in reality; children with special needs are normally having multiple restricted functional-abilities. The research aims to develop an assistive product based on the local contents using the current and relevant ICT technology. The MyLexics application is proposed in this study because of its potential benefits which improve children's learning, engagement and participation. Inclusive design principle is adopted in this study as we aims to intervene application which not only works for people with special needs but also works for other people.

This is in line with the aim of universal design which promotes accessibility to ICT regardless of abilities.

Author Keywords

Learning Difficulties, Children, Dyslexia, Mobile Application, MyLexics.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.2. Information Interfaces and Presentation (e.g., HCI), User Interfaces; J.3. Computer Applications; K.3 Computers and Education

Introduction

In Malaysia, it is estimated that 1 in every 20 students is dyslexic which means that each classroom in every primary school has at least 1 or 2 potential dyslexics [1]. This is supported by the figures from the Ministry of Education Malaysia that there are approximately 315,000 primary school children in Malaysia are potentially dyslexics [2]. There is also lack of local learning tools for children with learning difficulties in Malaysia [3]. In fact, many of the current applications were developed based on the contents adopted from other developed countries especially among the English speaking country [4]. Therefore, it is not only costly but some of the content might not relevant to our culture and children with special needs in Malaysia.

In 2010, FTMK has commercialised MyLexics which is an assistive learning courseware to help dyslexic children learn basic Bahasa Melayu. MyLexics is not only suitable for dyslexics but it is also can be used for children with other learning difficulties (e.g. ADHD, autism) and children aged 3 years old and above [2]. This research has led to more related research focuses on children with multiple disabilities such as DS and autism. Our initial engagement with Pusat Impian Kita started in December 2016 in order to create awareness and supporting parents who has children with learning difficulties. We found that the parents are positive to help their children to overcome the learning difficulties. Thus, the current works attempt to improve the learning and participation among children with multiple disabilities with the use of MyLexics at Pusat Impian Kita – in fact, it offers more interactive and engaging learning environment for children with multiple disabilities. The usability assessment of applications through this research aims to promote and increase the assistive learning courseware intervention to help children with learning difficulties learn basic Bahasa Melayu in Pusat Impian Kita. This effort will not only contribute in enhancing the quality of life for children with learning difficulties - but, it also contribute to the collaboration and synergy by academia and related communities.

MyLexics 2.0 Application (MyLexics 2.0)

MyLexics 2.0 is a mobile application version of MyLexics - courseware that was developed to help children with dyslexia learn to read and write in the Malay language. MyLexics was developed based the 'Dual coding theory' by Allan Paivio [5] who suggested that a recall or recognition can be enhanced by presenting information in both visual and verbal form, combined with the Scaffolding teaching strategy [6] – providing assistance to student as-needed basis, fading it as the competence increases.

The content has been structured as building up process; the children learn the individual 'alphabets' and then combine the alphabets to make 'syllables',

finally they add the combined syllables to other syllables to form 'words'. MyLexics 2.0 (Figure 1) was designed based on mobile cloud computing to increase the numbers of the target users in the global market. Mobile cloud computing is a power tool to enable them to use this mobile application anytime and anywhere when needed irrespective of their movement. The advantages of mobile cloud computing; Mylexics 2.0 provides additional crucial feature by helping teachers and parents to monitor the progress of their children's learning in real time which cannot be done by previous version.



Figure 1: The MyLexics 2.0 application.

Summary

This research is to explore how the technology-based intervention of the MyLexics may lead to a better supporting about the needs of children with learning difficulties in Malaysia and more related studies will be carried out to ensure the prosperous solutions of ICT are accessible and usable to the community regardless

References

- [1] Persatuan Disleksia Malaysia (2017), Retrieved on March 2017 from http://dyslexiamalaysia.org.my
- [2] Abdullah, M.H.L., Hisham, S. and Parumo, S., 2009. MyLexics: an assistive courseware for Dyslexic children to learn basic Malay language. ACM

SIGACCESS Accessibility and Computing, (95), pp.3-9.

- [3] Mohd Yusof, A., Daniel, E.G.S., Low, W.Y. and Ab. Aziz, K., 2014. Teachers' perception of mobile edutainment for special needs learners: the Malaysian case. International Journal of Inclusive Education, 18(12), pp.1237-1246.
- [4] Balakrishnan, B., Hor, B.C., Idris, M.Z., Othman, A.N., Wong, M.F. and Azman, M.N.A., 2015.
 Improving the English literacy skills of Malaysian dyslexic children: The case of culturally responsive mobile multimedia tool. Geografia: Malaysian Journal of Society and Space, 11(13), pp.49-59.
- [5] Paivio, A. & Begg, I. (1981). The Psychology of Language. New York: Prentice-Hall.
- [6] Wood, D., Bruner, J., & Ross, G. (1976). The role of tutoring in problem solving. Journal of child psychology and psychiatry, 17, 89-100.

About Author

Muhammad Hazig Lim Abdullah is a senior lecturer and researcher under a subgroup Specialists in Special Needs Awareness and Research (SPEAR), Human Centered Computing - Information System Lab (HCC-ISL), Centre of Advanced Computing, Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi (FTMK), Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTEM). He received his first degree in Information Technology from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia followed by Master of Multimedia from Swinburne University of Technology, Australia. He obtained his PhD from the Queensland University of Technology, Australia in the area of Human-Computer Interaction. His research interest are in the area of Interaction Design, Participatory Design, Co-Design, Human-Computer Interaction (People with Special Needs) and Assistive Technology.

Svariffanor Hisham is a senior lecturer and researcher under a subgroup Specialists in Special Needs Awareness and Research (SPEAR), Centre of Advanced Computing, Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi (FTMK), Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTEM). She is currently attached with Institute for Youth Research (IYRES), Ministry of Youth and Sport as a Manager for Planning and Research Division. Her research interests are mainly in the area of Human-Computer Interaction particularly for people with special needs and brain computing. Syariffanor and her research team at UTeM have won gold and silver medals in various local and international research and innovation competitions for their research products MyLexics, Sistem Kebolehbacaan Bahasa Melayu (SPIKE) and Sistem Saringan Disleksia Bahasa Melayu untuk Belia dan Dewasa (DiME). Through SPEAR, she has actively organized awareness program for teachers, public and schools throughout Malaysia since 2009 including Dyslexia Viral Video Competition in 2014.

Mohd Hafiz Zakaria joins Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka as a Senior Lecturer in the Department of Interactive Media, Faculty of Information and Communication Technology. He received his first degree in Information Technology from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia followed by Master of Science in Multimedia from Universiti Putra Malaysia. He obtained his PhD from the Queensland University of Technology, Australia in the area of social media. He is also a certified Apple Foundation Trainer. His primary research interests include ICT tools for people with special needs, digital media production and e-learning.

Shahril Parumo is a senior lecturer and researcher at the Faculty of Information and Communication Technology at Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka, Malaysia. He has a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia and a MSc in Computer Science from the Universiti Putra Malaysia. His research interests focusing towards field of human computer interaction, assistive technology and online learning. Currently, he is a member of Human Centered Computing - Information System Lab under Center for Advanced Computer Technology, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka.

Persuading Malaysians through Technology

Masitah Ghazali

Centre of ICT Universiti Teknologi Malaysia 81310 Johor, Malaysia masitah@utm.my

Abstract

This position papers describes the works that had been performed and currently ongoing in the area of persuasive technologies. A spectrum of persuasion with regards to technology towards achieving behavioural change is illustrated, with building trust on one end, and behavioural change on the other. The spectrum is further categorised into three: (i) embracing the technology, (ii) dynamically updated information with moderate action response, and (iii) constant nudging and immediate change of action.

Author Keywords

Persuasive technologies; behavioural change; personalisation; community.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Miscellaneous; K.4 Computers and Society.

Introduction

Over the course of 10 years, we have seen the booming of applications and systems developed to meet the needs (and the wants) of the users. With a vast number of smartphone users in Malaysia, which was estimated to reach 19.9 million in 2017 [1], an opportunity should be taken, especially when we have the aspiration to design and utilize the technology for

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

the betterment of the users. With this notion, our works look into persuasive technology and describe the spectrum by making brief explanation of our current and past projects.

Past and Current Works

In 2003, Fogg defines persuasive technologies as interactive computing systems deliberately designed to change people's attitudes and behaviours [2], including to change what they do or think. Persuading techniques are diverse, and the extent of usage of the techniques can reflect the degree of persuasion that the system has. The way we illustrate persuasive technologies as we applied in our works are as below, in which we categorised them into three, with two ends (see Figure 1).

Embracing the technology

The lowest degree of persuasive technology are of the ones which the computer systems push or provide information periodically, and the users may only receive the messages, reminders, prompts or recommendations as they use the systems. We further describe this category as systems which are designed to get the users to keep wanting to use the system, as the users started to gain trust and confidence to keep continuing using them.

In our line of work, this can be seen in two of our projects, which both involved with undeserved groups. The first one is a learning software for children with cerebral palsy, in which the proposed design model (LSUIDM) is designed to meet the needs of the children in learning [3]. Incorporating the elements of game levels, with motivating caption and messages via audio, the children showed positive behaviour to finish each level, and opted to use the designed game as opposed to the conventional method.

Similar approach was applied for visual impaired users in B-DiNAMA project [4], where the mobile application was designed in such a way to give clear directions with encouraging and motivating responses. The feedback from users' were positive as they found the application builds up their confidence to be out by themselves, if not with a peer, as opposed to asking for help from the public.



Figure 1: Spectrum of persuasion towards behavioural change

Dynamically updated information with moderate action response

The middle spectrum describes the persuasive technologies with information that are dynamically updated. As users started to use the systems, data will be recorded from time to time, and the messages as per described before, will be pushed to users even though while the systems are not actively in use. The users may or may not take action immediately, but they are aware of the changes, and will take response at the time that suits them.

MyVeri5 application was designed to motivate users to seek truth by verifying news and forwarded messages before sharing [5]. The mechanism of MyVeri5 allows users to submit any information to be verified, and dynamically receive the verified feedback soon after the respective agencies completed with the verification. Receiving feedback in the form of status: genuine or fake, of the submitted news or messages, instils relief and making users to continue using the app and even encourage the closest circle of friends and family to also use it.

The above application explores the idea of the six degree of separation, to give greater impact. A similar approach is applied in our COMBI dengue application [6], which combines with behavioural change theory, to encourage not just individual but the community to work together with the same goal, i.e. to eradicate dengue. The application provides reminders of activities one should perform, and updates of their circle colleagues and friends' activities based one nearby location, so to enable 'comparison' of self-progress to others. Constant nudging and immediate change of action Fully utilizing the use of sensors for close monitoring and tracking of user's actions or physical activities, the third category describes constant nudging and the immediate change of action from the user. We elaborate this category further into two, i.e. loose loop, and tight loop. The tight loop is of the ones which many of smartwatches today have, that the sensors embedded in the devices are able to record and analyse data, for instance heart rate, calories, which translate into personalized messages to nudge people to take the appropriate measurement. The extreme example would be a work by [7] where via motion capture, real time vibrotactile feedback is used to continuously nudge a violinist when playing incorrectly. We consider the violinist as primary target.

Meanwhile our work, describes the loose loop, which the sensors used are not directly tracking the users, rather, monitoring the real time data of certain devices (secondary target) and translate them for the usage of the primary target. In [8], we explore the types of peripheral display which visualizes the data of electrical consumption in an office, that could persuade the occupants to take the appropriate measurement when noticing the high usage of electricity. As the visualisation is always being displayed on the wall, i.e. constant reminder is given, people will keep 'knowing' and take the appropriate measurement on the fly.

Closing remark

The appropriate design and use of technology have been proven to benefit the people. In the context of Malaysia, the opportunities are there waiting to be grabbed so in return we could gradually transform into a more responsible, caring and concerned society. The ultimatum of persuasive technologies is behavioural change, which can only be achieved when the desired actions are sustained. This itself is a challenge which seek and requires synergy from many collaborators to work together.

Acknowledgements

Author thanks various groups and agencies for the opportunities to collaborate, namely ViCubeLab, Software Engineering research group (SERG) and Information Assurance and Security research group (IASRG) from the School of Computing, as well as *Jabatan Kebajikan Masyarakat* and *Jabatan Kesihatan Daerah Johor Bahru.* This work is supported by Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM) under the Contract Research Grant Category (VOT R.J130000.7651.4C206).

References

- The Statistics Portal. Number of smartphone users in Malaysia from 2015 to 2022 (in millions)*. 2017. Retrieved January 30, 2019 from https://www.statista.com/statistics/494587/smartp hone-users-in-malaysia/
- B.J. Fogg. 2003. Persuasive Technology: using computers to change the way we think and do. Morgan Kaufmann Publishers Inc. San Francisco, CA, USA.
- 3. Nuraini Hidayah Sulaiman and Masitah Ghazali. 2016. Learning through Playing for Children with Cerebral Palsy. *Jurnal Teknologi*, 78 (2-2), pp. 63-72.
- Masitah Ghazali and Sangeetha Pulanisamy. 2014. B-DiNAMA: Liberating the visually impaired users. *International Journal on Interactive Digital Media*, vol. 2 (1), pp. 15-21. ISSN 2289-4098.

- Masitah Ghazali, Shukor Abd Razak, Mazleena Salleh, Mohd Ismail Fauzi Isnin and Hazinah K. Mammi. 2017. To Share or Not to Share: *Tabayyun* Made Possible with MyVeri5. *Advanced Science Letters*, 23 (5), pp. 4542-4545(4).
- 6. Masitah Ghazali, Afzan Rosli, Noraini Ibrahim and Habel Hisyam. 2018. COMBI Behavioral Change Model: using Persuasive Technology for Dengue Prevention in Community. *International Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics*, (in press).
- 7. Rose Johnson, Janet van der Linden and Yvonne Rogers. 2010. MusicJacket: the efficacy of realtime vibrotactile feedback for learning to play the violin. DOI: 10.1145/1753846.1754004
- 8. Masitah Ghazali, Muhammad Asyraf Othman, Mohd Fo'ad Rohani, Noraini Ibrahim and Nur Zuraifah Syazrah Othman. 2018. Creating Awareness of Energy Consumption via Peripheral Display. *In Proceeding of 11th AUN/SEED-Net Regional Conference on Computer and Information Engineering 2018*, 26-27 November 2018, Surabaya, Indonesia.

Author:

Masitah Ghazali is an associate professor at School of Computing and a member of ViCubeLab Research Group at the University of Technology Malaysia (UTM). Her interest in HCI had driven her to work in various domains; such as embedded systems, software testing, interactive technology, and with the recent project on behavioural change using persuasive technology. Recently, she has been appointed as an IT Academic Fellow at the Centre of ICT at UTM. She is one of the founding members and currently the chair of myHCI-UX.

Game-Based Intervention for Autism Spectrum Disorder

Nor Farah Naquiah Mohamad Daud

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka M031810002@ student.utem.edu.my

Muhammad Haziq Lim Abdullah

Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi, Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka hazig@utem.edu.my

Abstract

Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) is one of the fastest growing disorders that had been happening around the world. The ratio of children in Malaysia, diagnosed with autism is in 1 in every 625. Due to insufficient of learning auxiliary tool, ineffectiveness of teaching strategy and inadequate of good social-emotional development among children with ASD, this research project is initiated as a means of solution to aid in the situation. This research aims to design and develop a game for supporting social-emotional development of children with ASD. Most importantly, this research is to explore on how game can support social-emotional development of children with ASD

Author Keywords

Autism Spectrum Disorder, Children, Games, ASD, Social-Emotional Development.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.2. Information Interfaces and Presentation (e.g.,HCI), User Interfaces; J.3. Computer Applications; K.3Computers and Education

Introduction

Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) is a developmental disorder which the person tends to face difficulties in communication, social functioning and behavior. In

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

addition, according to the National Institute of Mental Health, autism is known as a "spectrum disorder" because there is a wide variation in the type and severity of symptoms people experience. Besides, it is being mentioned that the communication and social skills of children with ASD including imitation, empathy and shared attention, present differentiated developments and in some cases with evident limitations [1]. Additionally, children with ASD have difficulty in understanding people as intentional agent. As the world keeps evolving towards modernization, the prevalence of autism is increasingly commonly today.

In 2014, according to the Centre for Disease Control (CDC), a rising percentage of the world population is being diagnosed with an ASD is estimated 1 per cent of the world population had an ASD [2]. Besides, in Malaysia, autism should no longer be considered as a rare disease but instead it should be recognized as a developmental disability that needed an urgent support. Furthermore, according to recent statistics, there are 300,000 people diagnosed with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) in Malaysia [3] and it is identified that autism occurs more frequent in boys rather than girls. Thus, this number shows that it is important to give support to this people suffered with ASD. In fact, the increasing number of people diagnosed with ASD shows that it is important to support these children. Hence, the resources to cater this people are needed to be doubled in order to support their needs.

Nowadays, children are really fascinated by television and computer games and it goes same way to the children with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD). In addition, many children with ASD enjoy playing games as they can improve their social skills, learn a variety of problem-solving and executive functioning skills.

Therefore, there is a question that have been motivated in this research which is how effectiveness game can support social-emotional development for children with ASD. Thus, there are 2 main problem that needed to be addressed:

- i. Inadequate of good social-emotional development among children with ASD.
- ii. Insufficient of auxiliary tool and ineffectiveness of teaching strategy to cater for autism education services.

Thus, the resource in the country to develop facilities and programs are much needed in order to overcome the increasing demand for autism education services.

Challenges that Children with ASD Encounter.

Bringing up a child with ASD can be a challenging for parents especially when other people do not understand the issues. A study found that although 95 percent of respondents recognized the name of autism but less than 70 percent can give specific characteristics of ASD [4]. These percentage shows that a lack of knowledge can lead to negative attitudes towards autistic individuals and families. Therefore, there a several challenges faced by individual autistic. One of it is education and care. There are three main problem to cater education services for children with ASD. According to [5], the problems are shortage of qualified teachers, objections to inclusion and as well as shortage of gualified caregivers. A survey was conducted and shows that only 6 percent of children in needs in Malaysia are enrolled in inclusive programs. Due to intensity of caring for their children, parents tend

to think that they should be provide form of care towards their children and sometimes school's activities do not meet the need for high quality care of children with ASD.

Furthermore, a healthcare system is also struggling to keep up with the growing demand for children with ASD. Due to shortage of specialist care make some parents thought that regular checkup visits could be challenging because of little understanding and accommodation of the children needs. Thus, this leads to the third challenges which is lack of autism friendly spaces. Waiting in line, riding a bus or even going to a restaurant could be highly stressful events for the children with ASD. Therefore, many simple changes would enable more families with autism to successfully navigate a space.

Games Potentially Supported the Development for Children with ASD

As the world keep evolving towards modernization, games have a biggest potential as a medium for intervention to cater children with special needs to learn, exchange and sharing contents and others. According to [6] games are found to have an incredible potential as a intercession for children with ASD because of the capacity to join attentively design elements with normally happening contingencies (i.e., having fun together).As a matter of fact, children with special needs benefit the use of computer-based technologies such as games to facilitate their educational activities in learning aspect. There are several platform of video games that have been widely used to facilitate children with ASD.

i. Mobile Games: According to [7], Toca Boca which was a game development studio focused on child-friendly applications for tablets and smartphones. They found that smartphones and tablets help autistic children to develop a new skill.

- ii. Virtual Reality Games: Virtual reality game also can be a powerful tool for training and rehabilitation since it offers safety, real time feedback, structured training and others [8]. For an example, a study shows that virtual reality game entitled 'Pink Dolphin Game' can improve the social and communication skills among children [9].
- iii. Augmented Reality Games: A study using augmented reality technology work as a Toon-Chat for children with ASD where the game help to enhance the communication development of children by covered their teacher's face with virtual cartoon and processed voice. This is because to reduce their stress of interacting with people and make them easier to understand emotions [10].
- iv. Kinect Games: Kinect game can be effectively to the children with ASD as Kinect technology has several features which make it suitable to cater needs of children with AS. For an example, a study using a Kinect game called 'Kinect Adventures' gives a positive impact in enhance their memory and push them to greater sociability [11].

Therefore, games can help the children to improve their social-communication, social-emotional as well as behavior towards peers, caregivers, teachers and people surrounding them. Subsequently games also can support social-communication and social-emotional development of children with ASD. According to [12], emotional development of children with ASD using paper based intervention which require the children to have literacy and writing skills were found not successful because the necessary components required are difficult to achieve by children with ASD. Thus, with a game that has

features such as face recognition enable the children to imitate the avatar as to improve their social-emotional development. For an example, a study shows a game called 'CopyMe' required the children to imitate the avatar's facial expression (i.e., happy, sad, angry, surprised, fear and disgust) [13].

Summary

This research is to address the following objectives: (i) to investigate on how game can support the socialemotional development of children with ASD, (ii) to design and develop the game for children with ASD and (iii) to evaluate short term used of the game in social emotional development of children with ASD. In fact, this research is expected to design and develop a game to support the social-emotional development of children with ASD. To summarize, this project is expected to help children with ASD that face difficulties in social functioning behavior, communication and to understand emotion.

References

- [1] S. Baldassarri, S. Ramis, and F. J. Perales, "Videogame-based case studies for improving communication and attention in children with ASD."
- [2] E. Koshy, "Autism is not impenetrable _ New Straits Times _ Malaysia General Business Sports and Lifestyle News," 2018. [Online]. Available: https://www.nst.com.my/lifestyle/sundayvibes/2018/04/354620/autism-notimpenetrable.
- [3] M. T.Selva, "Giving support to children with autism - Metro News _ The Star Online," 2017.
 [Online]. Available: https://www.thestar.com.my/metro/community

/2017/04/29/giving-support-to-children-withautism-it-is-an-uphill-struggle-for-thosediagnosed-with-the-disorde/.

- [4] S. M. S. & S. S. A. Rahman, "A PRELIMINARY STUDY: AWARENESS, KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDE OF PEOPLE TOWARDS CHILDREN WITH AUTISM," vol. 2014, no. June, pp. 322– 332, 2014.
- [5] J. M. Lim, "Living with Autism in Malaysia," no. July, 2015.
- [6] L. E. Boyd *et al.*, "Evaluating a Collaborative iPad Game 's Impact on Social Relationships for Children with Autism Spectrum Disorder ACM Reference Format:," vol. 7, no. 1, 2015.
- [7] M. S. Eder, J. M. L. Diaz, J. R. S. Madela, M. U. Mag-usara, and D. D. M. Sabellano, "Fill Me App : An Interactive Mobile Game Application for Children with Autism," vol. 10, no. 3, pp. 59– 63, 2016.
- [8] E. Bozgeyikli and A. Raij, "Locomotion in Virtual Reality for Individuals with Autism Spectrum Disorder," pp. 33–42, 2016.
- [9] S. Chan, Y. Cai, A. Lu, N. Z. Tun, L. Huang, and I. Chandrasekaran, "Virtual Reality Enhanced Pink Dolphin Game for Children with ASD," pp. 215–218, 2016.
- [10] F. Zhang and F. Ying, "Toon-Chat: A Cartoon-Masked Chat System for Children with," pp. 1– 2, 2017.
- E. Boutsika, "Kinect in Education : A Proposal for Children with Autism," *Procedia - Procedia Comput. Sci.*, vol. 27, no. Dsai 2013, pp. 123– 129, 2014.
- [12] N. Harrold, "CopyMe : An Emotional Development Game for Children," pp. 503–506,

2014.

[13] C. T. Tan, N. Harrold, and D. Rosser, "Designing CopyMe : An Expression Mimicking Serious Game," Proc. SIGGRAPH Asia 2013 MGIA, p. 73, 2013.

About Author

Nor Farah Naquiah Mohamad Daud is a student at the Faculty of Information and Communication Technology at Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTeM). She has a Bachelor Degree in Information Technology (Game Technology) from UTeM and currently pursuing studies in MSc in Multimedia Computing at UTeM as well.

Muhammad Haziq Lim Abdullah is a senior lecturer and researcher under a subgroup Specialists in Special Needs Awareness and Research (SPEAR), Human Centered Computing - Information System Lab (HCC-ISL), Centre of Advanced Computing, Fakulti Teknologi Maklumat dan Komunikasi (FTMK), Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka (UTEM). He received his first degree in Information Technology from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia followed by Master of Multimedia from Swinburne University of Technology, Australia. He obtained his PhD from the Queensland University of Technology, Australia in the area of Human-Computer Interaction. His research interest are in the area of Interaction Design, Participatory Design, Co-Design, Human-Computer Interaction (People with Special Needs) and Assistive Technology.

User Requirements Analysis of Community-based eHealth Mobile App for Dengue Surveillance

Nor Azman Ismail

ViCubeLab, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. azman@utm.my

Santokh Singh

School of Computing, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. santokhsingh018@gmail.com

Lim Lip Hong

School of Computing, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. xanxusme1987@gmail.com

Fakhrul Zukri Enchum

School of Computing, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. fakhrulzukri83@gmail.com

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

• ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.

Masitah Ghazali

Center of ICT, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. masitah@utm.my

Nur Zuraifah Syazrah Othman

ViCubeLab, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. zuraifah@utm.my

Nor Anita Fairos Ismail

ViCubeLab, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 81310, Johor, Malaysia. noranita@utm.my

Abstract

This paper seeks to analyze the user requirements of designing community-based eHealth Mobile App for dengue surveillance. The methodology used for our project is Focus Group Discussion (FGD), questionnaires and interview. Majority respondents get health crisis information from television and their general knowledge and awareness about dengue is moderate. Features such as the information of dengue symptoms, prevention and treatment and Dengue map of Malaysia with hotspot area highlighted are among important features recommended. In addition, medical expert suggested the design of e-Health Mobile App should include COMBI (Communication for Behavioral Impact), so that the community can involve in the prevention of health crisis (dengue).

Author Keywords

User requirements, E-Health, Health crisis, Dengue Detector, COMBI.

ACM Classification Keywords

K.4 Computers and Society.

Introduction

Dengue fever is a lethal disease that has become a global concern since the Second World War and is common in more than 110 countries [6]. Dengue fever virus is primary distributed by Aedes mosquitoes [9]. In some cases, the virus can also be transmitted through blood transfusion and organ donation [10]. Statistics have given that in 2017, 82,840 dengue fever cases were recorded with 171 deaths reported [1]. This shows that dengue fever is not a disease that should be ignored by the community.

Controlling dengue outbreak is already a challenging effort, with seemingly new strains of the virus continue to emerge [7]. Identifying ways to improve the awareness of dengue fever undoubtedly should hold highest priority. This is especially true for countries like Malaysia, which boasts a worryingly high number of deaths related to dengue fever [1]. In this regard, the usage of technology could be beneficial. Current mobile devices' technological capacity is making them easy and fast to use for various purposes including the sharing of healthcare information and awareness. They have also increasingly been used in health care for communication, monitoring, educating, and facilitating adherence to disease management [2, 3, 4, 5, 8].

In terms of managing and controlling an outbreak, a mobile based application could be used as a dengue surveillance system, for example, using GPS systems to track, identify and warn users of hotspots dengue locations. The dengue hotspot tracking will be helpful to the Ministry of Health as they can come up with a countermeasure to eradicate the dangerous mosquitoes in the hotspot. As controlling the outbreak of dengue fever is very much a community problem, finding a communitybased solution is necessary. Thus, a proposal of a mobile-based application on dengue surveillance should be done by including the community in the user requirements stage. Therefore, this paper presented the findings gained from collecting data and information from the community, through focus group discussions, interview and questionnaires.

Methodology

We had conducted 4 Focus Group Discussions (FGDs) with average of 18 participants. Participants are members of the public in Malaysia. A sample of multiethnic Malaysian citizens with various age groups, gender and diverse educational background were recruited in the hotspot area of dengue, Skudai, Johor Bahru. Participation in this study was voluntary and all participants provided written informed agreement. All information of the participants was collected anonymously, and the outcomes were used for research purposes only. At the beginning of each FGD session, a consent form was distributed to all the participant to sign. Once recruited, participants were then screened for qualifications, that is they must be aged 18 years or over, willing and able to give written informed consent. At the end of the session, the participants received a token of appreciation to thank them for their effort and participation in the research study.

To collect the data, a series of questions was developed. The questions were based on the following themes:

Selected demographic distribution



Figure 1: Demographic distribution based on Educational Level



Figure 2: Demographic distribution based on Race

- i. Understanding of dengue fever
- ii. General knowledge on how to prevent dengue, and its treatment
- iii. People attitudes about the severity and susceptibility of dengue
- iv. Prevention practices and barriers to prevention
- v. Treatment-seeking behaviours

These questions are distributed to all the FGDs to allow discussion. Groups were separated into the three main ethnic groups of Malaysia, Malay, Chinese and Indian and were conducted in the local languages of the participants.

Different educational background within each ethnic group were elicited to allow exploration of differences in groups from different educational backgrounds. All discussions lasted approximately 45 minutes to 60 minutes, and each of the discussion was audio-taped and later transcribed. FGDs conducted in languages other than English were forward translated into English. The facial expressions during the discussion were also take into consideration. Finally, an interview with the medical experts in the field are being carried out. This is to ensure the information gathered are true and enough.

Result and Discussion

A total of 4 FGDs comprising well-distributed ethnics in a group were conducted. Selected demographic distribution of the study sample is shown in Figure 1 and Figure 2. Table 1 shows the discussion outcomes based on given themes. User requirements of designing community-based eHealth Mobile App for dengue surveillance were then identified (Table 2). As shown in Table 2, most of the respondents (84.8%) feel that the proposed Mobile App should provide information on symptoms, prevention, and treatment. 72.7% of them requires basic information on dengue, and the same percentage (72.7%) also prefers online AI-based chatbot. From the survey, respondents feel that it is not important to have features such as near real time update of dengue cases and healthy authority announcement. Only 1 person (3%) out of 33 respondents stated there is a need to have those features.

Theme area	Discussion Outcome	
Knowledge about Dengue	 Know about moderately sign and prevention Know the way to prevent mosquito breeding by remove source of stagnant water Know about severity and will cause death. Know home remedies such as Papaya Leaf Juice. 	
Prevention Practices	Destroy mosquito breeding sitePrevent against mosquito bite	
Barrier to Prevention	 Lack of community effort Lazy to practice prevention Perceived susceptibility that dengue gets by chance. 	
Attitudes towards Dengue	 Know dengue is severe and highly dead risk. Some perceived low risk getting dengue. 	
Treatment	 Practice home remedies Consult witch doctor Take medical treatment in hospital Seek immediately medical help 	

Table 1: Summarizes derived from the FGDs.

From the interview with medical experts, correct ways to treat patient were obtained. Efforts such as cleaning surrounding areas frequently, using larvicides, insecticides and fogging were stressed. Communitybased effort such as the Communication of Behavioural Impact (COMBI) was also identified as being crucial.

Features	N	(%)
Dengue basic information	24	72.7
Symptoms, prevention and treatment of dengue	28	84.8
Map of Malaysia (with area coloured accordingly)	16	48.5
Online chat with AI professionals (aka BOT)	24	72.7
Videos regarding dengue information	10	30.3
Near real time update of dengue cases	1	3
Health authority announcement	1	3
TOTAL	104	100.0

N = Number of respondent; % Percentage

Table 2: Features and user requirements

Conclusion

It is important to increase awareness on dengue fever so that the public can be educated on prevention and management. Based on the findings discussed, the main user requirements for the development of eHealth Mobile App (Dengue) are the dengue information (such as symptoms, prevention and treatment), map of Malaysia with hotspot area highlighted and COMBI (Communication for Behavioral Impact). We can reduce the death cases involving dengue fever by providing users with helpful diagnosis before they seek doctor for consultation. With these features in the design of eHealth Mobile App (Dengue) it will be helpful for the Ministry of Health and local community to come up with countermeasure to eradicate the dangerous Aedes mosquitoes in hotspot areas.

Acknowledgements

This work is part of our research work on using persuasive technology for dengue prevention. We thank all the volunteers, staffs of UTM ViCubeLab Research Group http://vicubelab.utm.my for provided helpful comments.

References

- BERNAMA, New Straits Times (2017-30-12). "Almost 83,000 dengue cases nationwide in 2017; 171 deaths". Retrieved February 4, 2019 from www.nst.com.my/node/319710/amp
- Boulos, M. N. K., S. Wheeler, C. Tavares and R. Jones (2011). "How smartphones are changing the face of mobile and participatory healthcare: an overview, with example from eCAALYX." Biomedical Engineering Online 10.
- Fiordelli, M., N. Diviani and P. J. Schulz (2013). "Mapping mHealth research: a decade of evolution." J Med Internet Res 15(5): e95.
- Hamine, S., E. Gerth-Guyette, D. Faulx, B. B. Green and A. S. Ginsburg (2015). "Impact of mHealth chronic disease management on treatment adherence and patient outcomes: a systematic review." J Med Internet Res 17(2): e52.
- Hardinge, M., H. Rutter, C. Velardo, S. A. Shah, V. Williams, L. Tarassenko and A. Farmer (2015). "Using a mobile health application to support selfmanagement in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: a six-month cohort study." BMC Med Inform Decis Mak 15: 46.
- 6. Heilman, J. M., De Wolff, J., Beards, G. M., & Basden, B. J. (2014). Dengue fever: a Wikipedia

clinical review. Open medicine: a peer-reviewed, independent, open-access journal, 8(4), e105-15.

- 7. Normile D (October 2013). "Tropical medicine. Surprising new dengue virus throws a spanner in disease control efforts". Science.
- Qiang CZ, Yamamichi M, Hausman V, Altman D (2011) Mobile applications for the health sector. Washington: World Bank.
- Ranjit S, Kissoon N (January 2011). "Dengue hemorrhagic fever and shock syndromes". Pediatric Critical Care Medicine. 12 (1): 90-100. doi:10.1097/PCC.0b013e3181e911a7.
- Wilder-Smith A, Chen LH, Massad E, Wilson ME (January 2009). "Threat of dengue to blood safety in dengue-endemic countries".

Authors:

Nor Azman Ismail is an accociate professor in Human Computer Interaction (HCI) and head of VicubeLab Research Group at the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM)

Masitah Ghazali is an associate professor at School of Computing and a member of ViCubeLab Research Group at the University of Technology Malaysia (UTM). Her interest in HCI had driven her to work in various domains; such as embedded systems, software testing, interactive technology, and with the recent project on behavioural change using persuasive technology. Recently, she has been appointed as an IT Academic Fellow at the Center of ICT UTM. She is one of the founding members and currently the chair of myHCI-UX. Nur Zuraifah Syazrah Othman is a Senior Lecturer at School of Computing and a member of ViCubeLab Research Group at the University of Technology Malaysia (UTM). She has been working on the HCI field of natural interaction and is especially interested in exploring how gestures can be deployed as a valuable addition to the interaction techniques that we currently have. She is a member of myHCI-UX.

Nor Anita Fairos Ismail is a Lecturer and a member of ViCubeLab Research Group at the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia Malaysia (UTM). Her interest in HCI had driven her to work in various domains; such as Aesthetics Screen Design and Web Design.

Santokh Singh, Lim Lip Hong and Fakhrul Zukri Enchum are undergraduate student within the Computer Science program at the School of Computing, Faculty of Engineering, Universiti Teknologi Malaysia (UTM).

Using Image Processing and Eye Detection to Improve Photograph Aestheticness of Selfie Images on Mobile Application

Nursyahirah 'Atikah Sharin

Faculty of Computer Science & Information Technology, Universiti Putra Malaysia nursyahirahatikah.1994@gmail.com

Noris Mohd Norowi

Faculty of Computer Science & Information Technology, Universiti Putra Malaysia noris@upm.edu.my

Lili Nurliyana Abdullah

Faculty of Computer Science & Information Technology, Universiti Putra Malaysia liyana@upm.edu.my

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

Self-photograph or selfie has become a popular and common activity on smart mobile devices nowadays. However, it is still difficult for the users to take a good selfie, which is time consuming and an endless task on mobile devices, especially for those who are not good at selfies. There have been few studies that worked on the approach of aesthetic in selfie. This study proposes an auto-captured mobile application for android users to take a good selfies and improve users' satisfaction when taking selfie. Our proposed system will help users taking selfies by providing an auto-captured camera and voice reminder that tell users to look at the camera lens. Aesthetic quality is estimated using empirical models for two compositional rules: eyes direction and head posture. We accomplish this by asking respondent to choose the most aesthetic selfportrait between looking direct to lens and looking direct to mobile screen, and we developed selfportraits of a 3D model of a human to be ranked from most aesthetic to least aesthetic. The study shows that 53% of respondent choose image of eyes looking direct to the lens as more attractive.

Author Keywords

Selfie; photography; aesthetic photographs; head posture; eye gaze; eye blink detection; humancomputer interaction

Introduction

Selfie refers to a self-photograph taken at an arm length by an individual using a digital or smartphone. It is one of the fastest ways to show yourself to others or record your everyday life for your own benefit. According to the authors [4],[6] the mobile phone is one of the most widely used electronic devices today. Advanced functions such as camera, e-mail, and mobile finance services in modern phones have broadened their usages and applications way beyond our imaginations from just a decade ago. One of the most used function is camera where can be used to capture memories of one self, such as selfies. Selfie became more and more popular with the development of social media. Now, it take an important role in our daily life. Along with its popularity, how to take a good selfie has become an issues to be solved. People want to look good on social media as facial attractiveness is a pervasive factor in everyday life. Even though people are often not aware of its impact, attractiveness affects our social perception and interactions in various ways [2]. Our attention is bound by pleasing people as an automatic effect which is hard to evade. Unfortunately, many of them encounter trouble when taking selfies. They often spend long time and take bunch of selfies trying to get the best shot that make them look pleasing and different from others.

Photography is defined as the art or practice of taking and processing photographs. Aesthetics in photography is how people usually characterize beauty in this form of art. There are various ways in which aesthetics is defined by different people. There exists no single consensus on what it exactly pertains to. However, the broad idea is that photographic images that are pleasing to the eyes are considered to be higher in terms of their aesthetic beauty. According to the Oxford Advanced Learner's Dictionary, Aesthetics means "concerned with beauty and art and the understanding of beautiful things" 1, and [10] "made in an artistic way and beautiful to look at". A more distinct discussion on the definition of aesthetics can be found in "Photo.Net Rating System"2. As can be observed, no consensus was reached on the topic among the users, many of whom are professional photographers. A related work have been proposed where a real-time selfie support system which provides suggestions for the head posture of the user and aimed to help user to take good selfies [7]. The aesthetic evaluation may vary due to different cultural backgrounds or knowledge differences. [9] introduced techniques enabling interactive guidance for better self-portrait photos ("selfies") using a smartphone camera. Aesthetics feedback was given for photos taken by mobile users from compositions, color combinations and the aesthetic rating [5]. The contribution of this work is to review and gather existing interdisciplinary knowledge of eye detector to implement on today's handheld. This work will be particularly helpful for some people out there to produce a better image as their memories in future. Some of us are very concern about the final image produced. The idea of this work will investigate the human eyes behavior during selfies.

Datasets

Our goal is to help amateur photographers take selfportraits that other people find it more aesthetically

pleasing. We accomplish this by asking respondent to choose the most aesthetic self-portrait between looking direct to lens and looking direct to mobile screen, and we developed self-portraits of a man 3D modelling where respondent ranked the portraits from most aesthetic to least aesthetic. We did the preliminary test as to confirm what problem that people facing when taking self-portraits. We conducted two tasks. Firstly, respondent were required to take two selfies of themselves with eyes looking at the mobile screen and with eyes looking directly into lens. After this, they were interviewed. For Task 2, respondent had to rank from the most attractive images to the least attractive images of 3D modelling of a man. The preliminary test were done with students from the Faculty of Computer Science and Information technology. They were five boys and fourteen girls with aged group 21 years old to 25 years old who had participated in this experiment. To overcome differences in the results during Task 1, the setup for this experiment was controlled. A room with a white background, a chair and a small coffee table has been setup for students to complete each task. Two SJCAM camera were used to record behavior of all respondent. Once the task were done, a face-toface interview happened where respondent needs to justify their own choices.

Experimental Results

21.1% of respondents looked directly into the lens, while 78.9% of respondents looked at the mobile screen in the first task. They commented that they want to have a nice selfie and make people who look at their image to feel connected as their eyes look directly into the lens. Meanwhile, those looked onto the screen mentioned that they felt comfortable and want to check whether their face look nice, have good lighting on their face, and that they have the best angle. In addition, they want to check where the button to take selfie is before they take the selfies. 52.6% respondents said image of eyes looking directly into the lens to be more attractive because looks more natural and they felt like the person in the image was looking directly to them and feel connected. The remaining 47.4% of respondents said that images that looked away from the lens were more attractive because selfie images with eyes looking directly into lens made them felt unpleasant. 73.3% of the respondents said that this issue mattered to them as they wanted to have a better selfie to show others and wanted to look confident in the image. For Task 2, 57.9% respondents said that they rank the pictures given by taking into account the head direction first, then the eyes direction. This is because the head plays an important role to show an attractive preference of the person's face as well as the facial expressions. The face will follow where the head is directed to. If the head is directed to the right angle, the face will also show its best features and the emotion can be relayed perfectly. Next is the direction of the eyes. This feature comes in the second placed because eyes can show how people feel during the selfie. If the eyes look into another direction instead of looking directly to the lens, it shows that the person is focusing on something else rather than taking a selfie, or that they don't have any interest to be in the picture, and the image might look awkward.

Conculison

From this experiment, we can tell that people actually want to have an aesthetic photographs but they don't know how to get the best photo and sometimes it is tiresome as they have to retake the selfie repeatedly to achieve the desired look. Some of respondents looked
at the mobile screen first because they wanted to check their face to get the best angle and some of them wanted to find where the button to take selfie was before they can take picture of themselves. Thus, we will be working on an auto captured selfie mobile application that will help people taking the best selfportraits of themselves. Our proposed system will help users taking selfies by providing an auto-captured camera and voice reminder that tell users to look at the camera lens.

References

- 1. Airlines.Net, http://www.airliners.net
- Brand R. J., Bonatsos A., D'Orazio R., & DeShong H. (2012). What is beautiful is good, even online: Correlations between photo attractiveness and text attractiveness in men's online dating profiles.
- 3. Computers in Human Behavior, 28, 166–170. doi:10.1016/j.chb.2011.08.023
- Jobanputra N., Kulkarni V., Rao D., & Gao J. (2008). Emerging security technologies for mobile user accesses. Electronic Journal on E-Commerce Tools and Applications (eJETA).
- Lei Y., Poonam S., Mu Q., James Z. Wang, and Jia L. (2012). OSCAR: On-Site Composition and Aesthetics Feedback through Exemplars for Photographers. International Journal of Computer Vision 96, 3 (2012), 353–383.
- Li F., Clarke N., Papadaki M., & Dowland P. (2014). Active authentication for mobile devices utilising behaviour profiling. International Journal of Information Security, 13(3), 229–244.
- 7. Naihui F., Haoran X., Takeo I. (2018). Selfie Guidance System in Good Head Postures.
- 8. Photo.Net Rating System, http://photo.net/gallery/ photocritique/standards.

- Qifan L. & Daniel V. (2017). Guided Selfies using Models of Portrait Aesthetics. Design Case Studies & Methods 2 (Technology)
- Rudolf A. (1974). Art and Visual Perception: A Psychology of the Creative Eye, University of California Press, Berkeley.

A Paradigm Shift: From User-Centred to Human-Centred Design

Fariza Hanis Abdul Razak

Faculty of Computer and Mathematical Sciences Universiti Teknologi MARA 40450 Shah Alam Selangor, MALAYSIA fariza@tmsk.uitm.edu.my

Abstract

This paper reflects how research in Human Computer Interaction (HCI) has shifted my design paradigm, from user-centred to human-centred design. While usercentred design focuses on making the computer easy to use and delivering what the users want from the computer, human-centred design is about what is like to be human. From our studies, we learn that to be a human means being able to explore, share and experience without fear. Thus, we need a computer who understands us as a human and provides a safe environment for our interaction.

Author Keywords

User-centred design; human-centred design; usability; user experience; human-like computer; reflection paper.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.m. Information interfaces and presentation (e.g., HCI): Miscellaneous.

My First Encounter with Human Computer Interaction (HCI)

I first got to know about Human Computer Interaction (HCI) when I did my Master studies in UiTM in 2000. Prof Norlaila Md Noor was the person who introduced me to the field. She taught students the importance of understanding humans in the design of a system. From her class, we learned how to make interface easy to use by other people so that people can do their work effectively and efficiently. Since then, I had developed an interest in making computers usable and accessible by the users.

Becoming an HCI Researcher

Due to strong interest in the field, I decided to continue my PhD in the UK under supervision of Prof Alan Dix at Lancaster University. Prof Alan Dix is one of the gurus in HCI whose book has been used as a textbook at universities around the world. At Lancaster University, I had an opportunity to work with Ethnographers, Social Scientists and Computer Scientists. Working with different talents from different backgrounds had directly influenced my point of views and eventually affected my research. I applied Participant Observation in which I used diary and interview as my main data collection methods. My work was also greatly inspired by Prof Don Norman whose work was on emotional design and whom I met at APCHI2004 in New Zealand. During my study years, I had acquired necessary people skills to help me understand people better, thus helping me design for certain people better.

From Usability to User Experience

Upon completion of my PhD in 2008, I started with a few usability projects in which my students and I had opportunities to evaluate some systems at UiTM. Later, we were given responsibility to perform usability evaluation of systems at some Government Agencies, universities and industries. Some of the usability studies we conducted had an impact on a particular user group: for example, how Immigration's Online Passport System affected elderly users in renewing their passport online [8], how JPA's HR Login Page affected their senior employees in getting into the system [4], how an e-learning system affected lecturers in their teaching [2] and how Air Asia's mobile app affected travellers in booking for their flight tickets (as an expert reviewer). What we learned from these evaluation studies was either about the user acceptance or rejection. From our experience, if a user accepts a system, he or she will usually respond with expression of positive emotions such as feeling happy, satisfied, energized or even spiritualized. Likewise, if a user rejects the system, he or she will respond it by expressing with negative emotions such as feeling frustrated or demotivated. The emotions that users express are very much associated with their use experience. Due to this, we as HCI designers often design based on what users want and feel: a usercentred design approach.

Now is Human Centred Design

Starting from 2016, we have started to study why people do things the way they do. 2015 marks the year in which 'viral' or oversharing became a phenomenon in Malaysia. We investigated why certain parents overshare stories about their children on social media [7], why young children use social media despite potential dangers awaiting them [5] and why people share fake news [6]. Our Government through MCMC made efforts to raise user awareness about the potential dangers of social media, especially for the young children, however, the efforts did not yield a fruitful result. [1] revealed that it was not about the children who were not aware of the dangers. In fact, they knew it quite well, but the main reason why they went on social media was simply because everyone else was doing it. Janet Read, an expert in Child-Computer Interaction (CCI), said during her talk in UM this year that a child should be allowed to make mistakes because this is how he or she learns about the world. She further highlighted that stopping children from going online is not a solution. We just need to have a computer who understands a child. A child who can explore the world without having to worry about their safety. She then coined a term 'child-like computer'. Similarly, the last two years our Government has been trying to educate the Internet users about the effect of fake news on politics and society, however, it was proven not to be successful as we are still getting fake news a lot, especially on social media. [3] and [7] both

References

- Chanda Phelan, Cliff Lampe, Paul Resnick. 2016. It's creepy, but it doesn't bother me. In Proceedings of the SIGCHI Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems (CHI '16), 5240-5251. http://dx.doi.org/10.1145/2858036.2858381
- Hemmy Abd Jalal. 2014. Usability Evaluation of UTHM Learning Management System – Author for Academic Staff. MSc Project Report. Universiti Teknologi MARA.
- Mustaqeem Mohd Adam. 2017. Factors Influencing Content Sharing Behavior in Facebook Among Public University Students. MSc Project Report. Universiti Teknologi MARA.
- Nik Yusmadi Nik Yusoff. 2014. Usability Evaluation of Human Resource Management System Login Page. MSc Project Report. Universiti Teknologi MARA.
- 5. Noor Hidayah Azmi. 2018. *Modelling Child Persona for Social Behaviours in Social Network Sites*. PhD Thesis. Universiti Teknologi MARA.

discovered the same reason why people share online: they thought that information they found would be useful to others. What we need is a technology that would check for facts either it is fake or real, leaving only the confirmed news which will then get shared with other users. From these studies, we finally understood what is like to be humans. As a human, we want to explore, share and experience without or with less worries. Therefore, what we need is a computer or technology who understands us and at the same time provides a safe environment for us to explore, share and experience.

- 6. Nor Amni Izazi Ahmad Kamil. 2019. Young Adults Awareness and Acceptance Towards Political Fake News via Facebook. MA Thesis. Universiti Teknologi MARA.
- 7. Nur Hidayah Abdul Rahim. 2016. *Study of Ethical Awareness of Sharenting on Facebook*. MSc Project Report. Universiti Teknologi MARA.
- 8. Rohana Ismail. 2014. *MyOnline Passport Assessment Satisfaction*. MSc Dissertation. Universiti Teknologi MARA.

About the Author

Fariza Hanis Abdul Razak is a senior lecturer at Faculty of Computer and Mathematical Sciences, UiTM Shah Alam. She currently supervises 6 PhD students who are doing research in Human Computer Interaction (HCI). Her research work particularly focuses on the quality of life of underserved user groups: older people, visually impaired people and young children. She is now writing books on diary study and sensitive research methods.

The Relationship of Social Cognitive Factors and Knowledge Sharing Behavior in Teachers' Virtual Communities

Azura Awang

Faculty of Computer and Mathematical Sciences, Universiti Teknologi MARA, 40450 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia. azura.awang@gmail.com

Zan Azma Nasruddin

Faculty of Computer and Mathematical Sciences, Universiti Teknologi MARA, 40450 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia. zanaz@tmsk.uitm.edu.my

Abstract

Knowledge Sharing (KS) between teachers in virtual communities (VC) has been affirmed to develop teachers' professionalism in this 21st century. This paper examines the KS behavior from Social Cognitive Perspective by investigating the relationship of Self-Efficacy, Personal Outcome Expectation, Community-Related Outcome Expectation, Trust and Knowledge Sharing Behavior in teachers' VC in Malaysia. Online web survey on participants were analyzed using SPSS. The findings revealed that teachers are positive towards KS behavior in VC and the predictor of knowledge sharing behavior in teachers' VC are Self-Efficacy, Trust, and Personal Outcome Expectation whilst Community-Related Outcome Expectation is excluded. Findings from this study contribute to the Information Technology (IT) fields by providing insights into the design and development of KS systems, promoting teachers' perception on the importance of KS behavior: provides new theoretical insights and also expanding the value in KS practices in education field specifically in Malaysia. It is recommended for future works to apply mixed method and content analysis techniques to provide a deeper understanding of KS behavior and the type of content teacher shared in VC.

Author Keywords

Knowledge Management, Knowledge Sharing, Social

Cognitive Theory, Virtual Community, Teacher

ACM Classification Keywords

Human-Centered Computing (Social content sharing)

Introduction



Figure 2: Research model

Virtual Communities (VC) has become one of the most popular Internet applications nowadays with the help of the growth of Internet technology. VC provide internet user with a convenient and efficient way to share knowledge among other users. Therefore, VC are constantly created to promote knowledge sharing (KS) over the Internet.

According to Social Cognitive Theory (SCT) as in Figure 1, user behavior is influenced by two factors: personal cognition and environment (A. Bandura (1986 & 1997). Personal cognition includes self-efficacy and outcome expectation. Environment involves trust.

Problem Definition

Quality teachers are the drives to the realization of the transformation of education in Malaysia (Malaysia Education Blueprint, 2013-2025). Therefore, in this era, teachers can no longer work efficiently as individuals. They need to work collaboratively to improve their professionalism (Hord, 1997).

However, teachers' professional development (PD) in Malaysia occurs at individual and not collaboratively (Waheed, Salami & Dahlan, 2011). Teachers need to be as efficient so that they can give out best-teaching practices by progressively learn to gain more knowledge and skills so that they can give out best teaching practices (Mizell, 2010).

Furthermore, Khalid, Joyes, Ellison, & Karim (2013) suggest teachers in Malaysia participate more in communities of practices (CoP) in their schools to enhance the quality of their teaching skills. By reuse and reinvent other teachers' ideas, teaching activities

may improve and learning materials preparation time could be reduced (Van et al., 2013).

Knowledge sharing (KS) purpose is to accelerate the competitive advantage of organizations and individuals' action capability through knowledge contribution and knowledge seeking for reuse. (Senge, 1998 and Chen & Hung, 2010, p. 226). While this is true, very few research has been done to study knowledge sharing in teachers' context. As such, knowledge sharing among teachers is a road to an effective way to improve teachers' professional development, content knowledge, and pedagogical skills (Van et al., 2013).

VC are being widely used by teachers for professional support, guidance, and inspiration (Bond, 2004; Matei, 2005). Since teachers working time is very tight, online knowledge sharing in VC of practice able support them to develop their professionalism (Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, 2014). In addition, Researchers in the education field and KM suggested the creation of VC of teachers as a new teachers' PD model, and as KM platform, a CoP can provide both tacit and explicit knowledge sharing opportunities among teachers. (Petrides and Nodine, 2003).

Less empirical studies have been done to investigate how CoPs can be sustained in education community (Kirschner & Lai, 2007). Knowledge is a valuable asset to share (Liebowitz, 2001).

SIGNIFICANT OF STUDY

The study contributes in providing new insights for KS system (KSS) development for teachers in VC based on understanding of their KS behavior in VC and model their behavior into a KSS.

LITERATURE REVIEW

SCT is widely accepted model for confirming the individual behavior (Compeau & Higgins, 1995).

Based on SCT, individual behavioral behavior is influenced by triadic factors which are 1) behavior; 2) environment; and 3) personal factors. SCT explains that there is the dynamic relationship between these three factors whereby it influences each other (Gist & Mitchell, 1992; Wood & Bandura, 1989).

Self-efficacy also refers to self-evaluation against an action, trial, and confidence in making a decision (Lin, Hung & Chen, 2009).

The next factor is outcome expectations. This factor is the expectation of getting something after performing something (Bandura, 1997; Sexton & Tuckman, 1991). Similarly, Dzewaltowski et al. (1990) say self-efficacy gives direct impact on the action of an individual.

Chowdhury (2005) states that trust is the prominent factor for defining knowledge sharing activities efficiency.

Hence, this study hypothesizes:

H1: There is a significant relationship between teachers' self-efficacy and knowledge sharing behavi or. In VCs context, the outcome expectation consists of two aspects which are 1) personal outcome expectation and 2) community-related outcome expectation (Chiu et al. 2006; Hsu et al. 2007). Hence, this study hypothesizes:

H2: There is a significant relationship between teachers' personal outcome expectation and knowledge sharing behavior.

In this study community-related outcome expectations is being examined as well essentially reported by Chiu et al. (2006) as being ignored in studies done by Wasko and Faraj (2005). In fact, some studies done have proposed that individuals share their knowledge with others because they have the expectation to help VCs to enlarge its knowledge repositories and sustaining the VCs (Chiu et al., 2006) Bock et al., 2002; Kolekofski & Heminger, 2003; Lesser, 2000). Hence, this study hypothesizes:

H3: There is a significant relationship between teachers' community-related outcome expectation and knowledge sharing behavior.

Ridings et al. (2002) propose that trust is a fundamental component in encouraging the voluntary online participation between strangers in virtual communities. While, Pavlou and Gefen (2004) affirm that for effective collaboration, the primary basis is interpersonal trust.

Also, Nonaka (1994) showed that interpersonal trust is essential in for establishing an environment for knowledge sharing in organization or team. Moreover, McEvily, Perrone, & Zaheer (2003) indicate that trust is

a valuable principle for knowledge sharing enhancement.

Identically Blau & Bierstedt (1965) and Kalantzis and Cope (2003) also posit that trust will be able to contribute to sharing knowledge of good quality by creating and maintaining the relationship. Hence, the last hypothesis is developed.

H4: There is a significant relationship between teachers' trust and knowledge sharing behavior as in Figure 2.

References

1 Bandura, A. (1986). Social Foundations of Thought and Action. The Health Psychology Reader, 94-106. doi:10.4135/9781446221129.n6

2 Bandura, A. (1997). Self-efficacy mechanism of control: Freeman, New York, NY

3 Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation. (2014, December). Teachers Know Best Teachers' Views on Professional Development. Retrieved from 80 https://s3.amazonaws.com/edtech-production/reports/Gates-PDMarketResearchDec5.pdf

4 Bond, P. (2004). Communities of Practice and complexity : conversation and culture.

5 Malaysia Education Blueprint. (2013). Blueprint 2013-2025. (2013). Ministry of Education, Malaysia.

6 Hord, S. (1997). Professional Learning Communities: Communities of Continuous Inquiry

7 Waheed, H., Salami, A. B., Ali, D. O., Dahlan, A., & Rahman, A. (2011). Collaborative web-based teacher professional development system: A new direction for teacher

professional development in Malaysia. International Journal of Humanities and Social Science, 1(7), 208-216.

8 Mizell, H. (2010). Why Professional Development Matters. Learning Forward. 504 South Locust Street, Oxford, OH 45056. 9 Khalid, F., Joyes, G., Ellison, L., & Karim, A. (2013). Teachers' Involvement in Communities of Practice: An Implication with Regard to the Current Approach of Teachers' Professional Development in Malaysia. Asian Social Science, 9(16). doi:10.5539/ass.v9n16p102

10 Van Acker, F., Van Buuren, H., Kreijns, K., & Vermeulen, M. (2013). Why teachers share educational resources: A social exchange perspective. Open Educational Resources: Innovation, Research and Practice, 177.

11 Senge, P. (1998). Sharing Knowledge: You can't own knowledge, so why not share it?. Executive Excellence, 15, 11-12

12 Wasko, M. M., & Faraj, S. (2005). Why should I share? Examining social capital and knowledge contribution in electronic networks of practice. MIS quarterly, 35-57.

13 Petrides, L. A., & Nodine, T. R. (2003). Knowledge Management in Education: Defining the Landscape.

14 Kirschner, P. A., & Lai, K. W. (2007). Online communities of practice in education. Technology, Pedagogy and Education, 16(2), 127-131.

15 Liebowitz, J. (2001). Knowledge management and its link to artificial intelligence. Expert Systems with Applications, 20(1), 1-6. doi:10.1016/s0957-4174(00)00044-0

16 Compeau, D.R., & Higgins, C.A. (1995). Computer selfefficacy development of a measure and initial test. MIS Quarterly, 19(2), 189-211.

17 Chiu, C., Hsu, M., & Wang, E. T. (2006). Understanding knowledge sharing in virtual communities: An integration of social capital and social cognitive theories. Decision Support Systems, 42(3), 1872-1888. doi:10.1016/j.dss.2006.04.001 81 18 Chowdhury, S. (2005). The role of affect-and cognition-based trust in complex knowledge sharing. Journal of Managerial issues, 310-326.

19 Gambetta, D. (1988). Can we trust?, Trust: Making and Breaking Cooperative Relations Edition.

20 Bock, G.W., & Kim, Y.G. (2002). Breaking the myths of rewards: an explatory study of attitudes about knowledge sharing. Information Resources Management, 14-21.

21 Hsu, M., Ju, T. L., Yen, C., & Chang, C. (2007). Knowledge sharing behavior in virtual communities: The relationship between trust, self-efficacy, and outcome expectations. International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, 65(2), 153-169. doi:10.1016/j.ijhcs.2006.09.003

22 Ridings, C. M., Gefen, D., & Arinze, B. (2002). Some antecedents and effects of trust in virtual communities. The Journal of Strategic Information Systems, 11(3-4), 271- 295. doi:10.1016/s0963-8687(02)00021-5

23 Riegelsberger, J., Sasse, M., & McCarthy, J. D. (2003). The researcher's dilemma: evaluating trust in computer-mediated communication. International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, 58(6), 759-781. doi:10.1016/s1071-5819(03)00042-9 24 Nonaka, I. (1994). Theory of Organizational Knowledge Creation. Organizational Science, vol 5, no.1.

25 Dzewaltowski, D.A., Noble, J.M., & Shaw, J.M. (1990). Physical activity participation: social cognitive theory versus theories of reasoned action and planned behavior. Journal of Sport & Exercise Psychology, 12(4), 388-405.

26 Blau, P. M., & Bierstedt, R. (1965). Exchange and Power in Social Life. American Sociological Review, 30(5), 789. doi:10.2307/2091154

27 Pavlou, P. A. (2003). Consumer acceptance of electronic commerce: Integrating trust and risk with the technology acceptance model. International journal of electronic commerce, 7(3), 101-134.

28 Kalantzis, M. and B. Cope, 2003. Linking trust values and perceived benefits. Proceeding of the International Conference on Knowledge Management (ICKM, 2003), 7-9 July, 2003. Putra World Trade Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. http://ickm.upm.edu.my/schedule.html

29 McEvily, B., Perrone, V., & Zaheer, A. (2003). Trust as an Organizing Principle. Organization Science, 14(1), 91-103. doi:10.1287/orsc.14.1.91.12814

30 Lin, C. A., & Chen, M. C. (2009). Factors Affecting Teachers' Knowledge Sharing Behaviors and Motivation: System Functions that Work.

31 Gist, M. E., & Mitchell, T. B. (1992). Self-Efficacy: A Theoretical Analysis of Its Determinants And Malleability. Academy of Management Review, 17(2), 183-211. doi:10.5465/amr.1992.4279530

BIODATA AUTHORS:

Azura Awang, Msc IT UiTM, Malaysia.

Zan Azma Nasruddin, PhD in IT IIUM, Malaysia. Research Interest in HCI, Signal Processing, Spiritual Design and UX.

Utilizing User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) in Evaluating a Shariah-Compliant Fashion E-Commerce Prototype

Nadia Abdul Wahab

Universiti Teknologi MARA Perlis Branch, 02600 Perlis, Malaysia nadiawahab@perlis.uitm.edu.my

Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak norzu@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Syafiqa Amira Zulkifli

Universiti Teknologi MARA Perlis Branch, 02600 Perlis, Malaysia syaf.mira33@gmail.com

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

The paper describes the idea of utilizing the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) in evaluating a shariah-compliant fashion e-commerce prototype. UEQ is a survey which can be utilized to evaluate the user experience quality of a product in term of Attractiveness, Perspicuity, Efficiency, Dependability, Stimulation and Novelty. There are twenty six (26) items in this guestionnaire with 7-point Likert scale. The main reason for choosing this tool is that UEQ comes with a data analysis tools which is very convenience to use. Data could automatically be analyzed and the graph is automatically generated by the data analysis tool. UEQ will assist the researcher in measuring the usability and user experience aspects of the e-commerce site as it allows a fast evaluation of the user experience of interactive products.

Author Keywords

User Experience; User Experience Questionnaire; E-commerce;

ACM Classification Keywords

H5.2 User interfaces: Evaluation/methodology, K4.4 Computers and Society: E-Commerce

Introduction

This research involves the design, development and evaluation of a shariah-complaint fashion e-commerce site for Muslim women in Malaysia. This site offers fashion products which are conform to shariah (Islamic system of life) requirements. The products offered in this site are stylish, fashionable yet elegant. The ecommerce site also comes with a built-in body-shape type calculator which can give recommendation of products based on consumers' body-shape type for example apple, pear and hour-glass. Beside that this site also has the ability to give recommendation of size for every consumers based on their body measurement.

With the rapid growth of online trading and ecommerce, the online shopping evaluation performs a very important role in improving user experience [1]. Nevertheless, majority of the research mainly proceeds from technical levels, which has lost sight on user evaluation, and fails to provide better user experience[2].

A good user experience is central for the success of this fashion e-commerce site. Therefore, it is very important for the researcher to be able to measure user experience in an efficient and reliable way[3]. There are many tools that can be utilized to measure user experience on certain products for example surveys, questionnaires, matrices. For this research the researcher will be utilizing the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) to measure user experience of the fashion e-commerce site.

User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ)

User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) is a survey to

which can be utilized to evaluate the user experience quality of an interactive product. Although this questionnaire was initially developed to evaluate software products, it can also be applied to any kind of digital and physical product.

The aim of the UEQ is to provide a fast evaluation by the users and focusing on comprehensive impression of user experience. It allows the users to express feelings, impressions, and attitudes that arise when experiencing the product effortlessly and immediately [4].

There are twenty six (26) items in this questionnaire and according to [4], each item of the UEQ consists of a pair of terms with opposite meanings, for example:

Boring o o o o o o o Exciting

Efficient o o o o o o o o Inefficient

Participants will then rate each item on a 7-point Likert scale. The answers are scaled from -3 (strongly agree with negative term) to +3 (strongly agree with positive term). Half of the items start with the positive term, the others with the negative term and they appear in randomized order [4].

According to [5], UEQ is arranged into six scales which are:

i. Attractiveness: This scale measures the overall impression of the product. This scale will indicate whether the users like or dislike the product and whether the product is attractive, enjoyable or pleasing.

- Perspicuity: This scale measure whether it is easy to get familiar with the product. It is also determine whether the product is easy to understand and unambiguous.
- Efficiency: This scale determines if the users could solve their tasks without unnecessary effort. This scale also measures the efficiency of the interaction within the product.
- iv. Dependability: This scale determines whether the user feel in control of the interaction the ability of the users to predict the system's behavior. This scale also measures the confident level of the users when they are working with the product.
- v. Stimulation: This scale measure whether the users feel exciting and motivating to use the product. It also determines if the product is enjoyable to be used.
- vi. Novelty: This scale measure if the product is innovative and creative and whether it captures the user's attention.

Advantages of UEQ

There are several reasons which motivate the researcher to utilize UEQ in evaluating this shariahcompliant fashion e-commerce prototype. Among the reasons are:

- i. Availability The questionnaire together with the handbook and the data analysis tool are available online at www.ueq-online.org. They are free of charge and can be downloaded in twenty different languages.
- ii. Data Analysis Tool UEQ comes with a data analysis tools in the form of Microsoft Excel sheets. A maximum of 1000 testers' responses

could be recorded in a sheet. Data is automatically analyzed and the graph is automatically generated by the data analysis tool. Fig. 1 shows an example for an overall result for a product.

- Language The initial version of UEQ was designed in German [6], but has been translated to twenty (20) languages including Malay Language. Thus this tool is appropriate for this study as the respondents are Malaysian and they will be able to choose to answer the survey via English or Malay version of UEQ.
- iv. Efficiency According to [3] generally, the survey takes around 3-5 minutes to complete including some demographic data [3]. Therefore, it can be said that UEQ is an efficient method to capture the opinion of a user towards the user experience of a product.
- Flexibility Although UEQ was initially developed as a paper-pencil version, is also suitable to be used as an online survey via Google Forms, Web Survey, Survey Monkey and other online survey platforms.

Conclusion

The paper discusses the idea of utilizing the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) in evaluating a shariah-compliant fashion e-commerce prototype. UEQ allows a fast evaluation of the user experience of interactive products. It measures usability aspects like efficiency, perspicuity and dependability and also user experience aspects like stimulation or originality.

References

[1] N. (Tek) T. Abdul R. Ashraf, Mohammed A. Razzaque, "The role of customer regulatory orientation and fit in online shopping across cultural contexts," *J. Bus. Res.*, vol. 69, no. 12, pp. 6040–6047, 2016.

- [2] L. Wang, L. Yang, and A. S. Selection, "Text Mining - based Evaluation of the User Experience in Online Shopping for Clothing," in 2017 First International Conference on Electronics Instrumentation & Information Systems (EIIS), 2017, pp. 1–4.
- M. Schrepp, A. Hinderks, and J. Thomaschewski, "Applying the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ) in different evaluation scenarios Construction of the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ)," Des. User Exp. Usability. Theor. Methods, Tools Des. User Exp., vol. 8517, pp. 383–392, 2014.
- M. Schrepp, A. Hinderks, J. Thomaschewski, and S. A. P. A. G. Germany, "Design and Evaluation of a Short Version of the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ-S)," vol. 3, pp. 103–108, 2017.
- [5] M. Rauschenberger, M. S. P. Mediensystempartner, M. Schrepp, S. A. P. Ag, M. P. Cota, and S. Olschner, "Efficient Measurement of the User Experience of Interactive Products . How to use the User Experience Questionnaire (UEQ). Example : Spanish Language Version," vol. 2, pp. 39–45, 2013.
- [6] B. Laugwitz, T. Held, and M. Schrepp,
 "Construction and Evaluation of a User Experience Questionnaire," pp. 63–76, 2008.

Authors

Nadia Abdul Wahab is a senior lecturer in Faculty of Computer & Mathematical Sciences, Universiti Teknologi MARA, Perlis. She received PhD in Instructional Multimedia from Universiti Sains, Malaysia in 2016. Her research interests are in the fields of instructional design, multimedia learning and humancomputer interaction (HCI).

Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain is a lecturer in Faculty of Arts, Computing and Creative Industry at Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris. She received Bachelor Degree in Information Technology from Universiti Utara Malaysia in 2001 and Master of Science (Information Technology) from Universiti Teknologi MARA in 2005. Her research interests are in the area of multimedia learning in education and implementation of mobile learning, focusing on special education needs.

Syafiqa Amira Zulkifli is a software developer and she is responsible in the design and development of webbased systems focusing in e-commerce solutions for small-medium enterprises (SMEs). She received Bachelor Degree in Information Technology from Uiniversiti Teknologi MARA, Malaysia.

Smart Door for Children with Disability of the Arm, shoulder and Hand (DASH)

Siti Sarah Azmi

Faculty of Computer Science And Information Technology, University Malaya 50603 Kuala Lumpur sitiaayaazmi@gmail.com

Raja Jamilah Raja Yusof

Faculty of Computer Science And Information Technology, University Malaya 50603 Kuala Lumpur rjry@um.edu.my

Abstract

People with disabilities interact with the environment differently compared to normal human beings. However, most environments are not design for universal accessibility. This is also for the case for people with disability of the arms, shoulder and hands (DASH). Our study aims to explore and analyze the significant actions of children with DASH related to opening doors in the real world and computing environment. The result serves as a guideline for designing smart build environment with IoT technology. We observed children and adults with DASH and found that in the context of opening a door (real or computerbased environment), gestural interfacing for people with DASH should focus on the top or the bottom part of the body i.e. the head, nose, mouth tongue and toes. We proposed system architecture for smart doors in IoT environment for children with DASH.

Author Keywords

DASH, HCI, Gesture Interface, IoT

ACM Classification Keywords

H.5.2. Information interfaces and presentation: User Interfaces

Introduction

Perfect humans are awarded two hands with two legs and operate their daily lives differently. However, human beings born without perfect limbs have different ways of running their daily lives. Adult and children with disability of their arm, shoulder and hands (DASH) have difficulties executing many tasks. Interacting with computers, mobile phones, buying food and drinks through the vending machines, and also opening doors.

Door locks

Digital door lock plays an important role on the smart home system, not only for door owners but also for family member incoming/outgoing security awareness [1]. In our contemporary living environment, most people, like to maintain privacy and security as well as like to avoid losing keys or passwords for their doors at home [2]. Additionally, many would like to own a fast, convenient and cost-effective exclusive door lock controller to establish some peace of mind.

Traditionally, splitting spring padlocks and combination locks are used to control the closing/opening of doors [3]. In recent years, locks have been made to use keys, turntables, buttons, circuitry, radio frequency technology such as radio frequency identification (RFID), and other safety devices as part of their operation.

An example of an innovative smart door is door lock design which has a non-contact pattern recognition controller to recognize a tiny pattern that can be displayed by mobile devices [2]. The recognized pattern is built using a two-dimensional text and graphics method that can be stored by owners' mobile devices. Therefore, when a key-owner comes near a door's control panel, the established two-dimensional text and graphics cypher can be displayed. Other type of digital door is where the design provide both carried key and non-carried key interface. The most practicable design is to combine smart card (carried) and touch screen panel (non-carried) [1].

Children

One of the important issues to consider when designing for children is their physical appearance. Four

supporting sections concerned with design, evaluation and implementation of interactive computing for children [4]. These are; the use, the computer system interface, the development process and the human characteristics. For example generally children use the computer for play and children are constantly adapting to interfaces. Therefore, the development of systems must take specific account of the physical sizes and abilities.

Our study

Our study is focusing on children with DASH which includes children with motor dysfunction and people with abnormal limbs i.e. without arms, shoulders, hands and fingers. Specifically, our study focuses on gestural interfacing. The motivation of this study relates to the fact that little study has been done to support disable communities in interacting with the environment through the Internet of Things (IoT) platform. Universal access should also be provided for the disabled communities in Smart build environment such as in homes, offices and learning space facilities. This is as suggested by [5] to build friendly smart city design facilitating the disability community consisting of accessibility, safety, minimized problems, and flexible environment.

Therefore, the aim of our study is to explore and analyze a suitable smart door system design for children with DASH in an Iot platform.

Interview and observation with adult/children with DASH

We conducted 3 interviews to people with DASH to answer a questionnaire and one person with no noticeable disability. They are two males and 2 females. The participants have the following disability: no elbow for right hand, no shoulder for right hand and no shoulder for both hands. We asked the questions in Table 1.

Table 1: Questionnaire for DASH people

No	Questions of opening a door
1	How do you open doors?
	Do you ask someone to help you?
	Do you use any tools to help you opening a door?
2	How do you open your wardrobe door?
	Do you ask someone to help you?
	Do you use any tools to help you opening a door?

Our observation from 12 YouTube videos of adult/ children with DASH identified their most common use body part to interact with the environment. Based on the interview and the observation we concluded that the most common method for children/adult with DASH to interact with the environment is by using the head, nose, mouth tongue and toes.

Proposed architecture for opening smart doors

This research is focused on gestural interfacing with existing system which include computing and real world. We focused on opening a pull door such as wardrobe door, window and drawers. Figure 1 shows a door that can be opened using a sensor placed on top of the door. The door can also be open using a camera that reads a suitable gesture from a child with DASH through a web interface. The opening door mechanism is through an Arduino set that sends the gesture signal to the door.



Figure 1: Proposed architecture system for Smart Door.

Acknowledgement

We thank University Malaya for funding this project under UMRG Program, grant no: RP061E-18SBS.

Reference

 Y. Yu, "A practical digital door lock for smart home," 2018 IEEE International Conference on Consumer Electronics (ICCE), Las Vegas, NV, 2018, pp. 1-2.

doi: 10.1109/ICCE.2018.8326305

- Jih-Fu Tu, (2016) "A contactless door lock controlled by portable devices", Engineering Computations, Vol. 33 Issue: 6, pp.1631-1641, https://doi.org/10.1108/EC-08-2015-0234
- Yu, A.-S., Xiao, G. and Zheng, J.Q. (2013), "Exploration and development of ancient locks", Science Monthly, Vol. 526 No. 10, pp. 774-779.
- Read, J. C., & Bekker, M. M. (2011). The Nature of Child Read, J. C. and Bekker, M. M. (2011) 'The Nature of Child Computer Interaction', in BCS-HCI '11 Proceedings of the 25th BCS Conference on Human-Computer Interaction, pp. 163–170.Computer Interaction. BCS-HCI '11 Proceedings of the 25th BCS Conference on Human-Computer Interaction, (1994), 163–170. Retrieved from http://dl.acm.org/citation.cfm?id=2305348
- Suryotrisongko, Kusuma and Ginardi. (2017).
 "Four-Hospitality: Friendly Smart City Design for Disability", Procedia Computer Science, ISSN: 1877-0509, Vol: 124, Page: 615-623

Author biodata

Siti Sarah Azmi received her Bachelor degree in Computer Science (Software Engineering) from University of Malaya (UM) in 2018. Currently she is pursuing her Master degree in Computer Science in UM. Her area of research in Human Computer Interaction, Internet of Things (IoT), Web Services, Gesture Interfacing, Computational Thinking and Web Interface. She is currently active doing activity with schools teaching them Islamic and Quranic education, and computational thinking skills. She has vast experience in competition like Arduino JomHack Smart Cities, Matriculation Innovation Competition using Arduino and UM talent in Innovation. Her current research is on Gesture Interfacing for People with Disability of the Arm, Shoulder and Hand (DASH) in Smart Build Environment.

Dr. Raja Jamilah Raja Yusof holds a bachelor degree in Information System Engineering from Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, London. She pursued her studies in Master and PhD in Computer Science from the University of Malaya. She is currently a Senior Lecturer in the Department of Software Engineering in Faculty of Computer Science and Information Technology, a member of Centre of Quranic Research, University of Malaya and also a Senior Member of Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineer (IEEE Senior Member). Her area of expertise includes usability of interfaces, Big Data Visualization, Design and Analysis of Algorithms, Java and Python Programming, Computational and Algorithmic Thinking, Scratch Programming and Islamic and Quranic Systems. Her main research interest is in Human Computer Interaction and Algorithms while Quranic and Islamic information are valued aspects of her research. Her

current research is on Computational Thinking and Gesture Based Interaction for people with disability of the arms, shoulders and hands.

Integrating Multisensory Learning in Mobile Application Development for Dyslexic Student

Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak norzu@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Nadia Abdul Wahab (Ph.D)

UniversitiTeknologi MARA Perlis Branch 02600 Arau, Perlis nadiawahab@perlis.uitm.edu.my

Laili Farhana Md Ibharim

(Ph.D)

Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris 35900 Tanjong Malim, Perak laili@fskik.upsi.edu.my

Paste the appropriate copyright/license statement here. ACM now supports three different publication options:

- ACM copyright: ACM holds the copyright on the work. This is the historical approach.
- License: The author(s) retain copyright, but ACM receives an exclusive publication license.
- Open Access: The author(s) wish to pay for the work to be open access. The additional fee must be paid to ACM.

This text field is large enough to hold the appropriate release statement assuming it is single-spaced in Verdana 7 point font. Please do not change the size of this text box.

Each submission will be assigned a unique DOI string to be included here.

Abstract

This paper points out the idea of integrating multisensory learning in a mobile application development for dyslexic student. The main reason of suggesting mobile application developer to integrate multisensory learning is to uphold a pertinent learning approach which suits the need and ability of the learner that directly use the developed mobile application. Multisensory learning is a learning approach that integrates visual (V), auditory (A) and kinesthetic (K) main sensory receivers, or VAK learning style model. Multisensory learning could help dyslexic student to actively learn using their vision, hearing and touch sense. Suitable learning approach should be applied to mobile application to ensure its effective use as a learning material. Ultimately, it is important to integrate appropriate learning approach according to learner's need and ability.

Author Keywords

Multisensory learning; mobile application; dyslexic student.

ACM Classification Keywords

H.4.m. **Information System Application**: Miscellaneous;

L.3.6.**Methodology/Tools/Technology**: Technology Enhanced Learning.

Introduction

Focus of this paper is to highlight the need of applying multi-sensory learning in mobile application development for dyslexic student. It can be realized by developing relevant mobile application with such approach embedded. Mobile application nowadays have been recognized as a type of learning materials. Variety of learning materials can be used in assisting student's learning, not forgetting student with learning disability. Several studies showed that mobile learning has been asserted as an alternative learning tool to assist students with special needs [1].

Student with learning disability (SLD) in this study is specifically for dyslexic students, in average from 6 years old to 15 years old. Why dyslexic? Dyslexic, suffered from dyslexia is usually having problem with reading or writing words or sentences. Dyslexia as defined by [2] was a neurobiological learning disability creating problems with word recognition, spelling and decoding. One thing in common, deficit in working memory usually give impact to the ability in retaining details competently and recalling stored information rapidly, and this has led to inaccuracy during remembering specific order of content or long thread of instruction [3].

In order to educate mobile application developer, the process of developing mobile application should be exclusively infused with considering dyslexic learning approach in mind, regardless variety of topic and variety of target user. According to [4], multisensory teaching is an effective approach to teach dyslexic children, who often do not learn well through sight and sound alone. [4] believed that they need to experience multiple sensations simultaneously. Therefore, learning process should be aligned with the teaching process.

Multisensory Learning

Learning using human sensory is a usual process that every human does since they were born. Normal human being is granted with five (5) basic senses: sight, hearing, smell, taste and touch. Researchers such as [5], [6] and [7] agreed multisensory technique, which integrates visual, auditory, tactile (touch) and kinesthetic (movement) learning elements, suits to be used by children with learning disabilities or special need. For a mean time,[8] believed learning can be in a multi-sensory way, that can make people accomplish learning process in the modals of hearing, speaking, reading, and writing.

Study by [5] shown that multisensory teaching method is the most effective teaching method for children with difficulties in learning to read. Meanwhile [6] highlighted that teaching methods for students with any form of learning disabilities should be adapted to the individual needs of the student. In addition, [7] emphasized on spelling challenges of learners with auditory processing disorder (APD) which can benefit from multi-sensory learning strategies.

Argument: Precise use of multisensory learning

Mobile application, either from smart phone or tablet is basically developed for learning purpose for specific learner. However, not many mobile application developers had equipped themselves with correct domain knowledge of dyslexia feature. Therefore, development of mobile application should consider the need and ability of dyslexic student.

Studies had shown that in order to enhance memory and learning, one of the most useful practice is multisensory method that have to be done simultaneously. For example, [5] drew attention to the function of multisensory teaching techniques and strategies, which stimulate learning by engaging students on multiple levels.[5] believed in using a multisensory teaching technique to assist a child in learning through more than one sense. The difficulty of learning can be solved by integrating the use of more of the child's senses, especially the use of touch (tactile) and movement (kinetic).

Prior to this, it is vital for teachers to use appropriate strategies that teach the connection between the pronunciation and spelling of a word, since the cause of dyslexia is a phonological processing disorder.Moreover, some educationists theorize that when students are taught using techniques consistent with their learning styles, they learn more easily and faster than before.

Conclusion

As a conclusion, multisensory learning provides more ways for understanding new information, more ways to remember it and more ways to recall it later[9].Multisensory teaching techniques help break down barriers to learning by making the abstract more concrete, turning lists or sequences into movements, sights and sounds. In addition, teachers who implement multisensory approaches in their teaching process, according to [3] usually give their support to academic growth by increasing their students' ability to maintain connections between and among concepts.

References

- FatimaEzzahraBenmarrakchi, Jamal El Kafi, Ali Elhore and Sara Haie, 2016. Exploring the use of the ICT in supporting dyslexic students' preferred learning styles : A preliminary evaluation. *Educ Inf Technol*, (October 2016), 1-19. http://10.1007/s10639-016-9551-4
- International Dyslexia Association. 2002.Definition of dyslexia. Retrieved Jan 14, 2015 from https://dyslexiaida.org/definition-of-dyslexia
- 3. Jeremy R. Mills. 2018. Effective Multi-Sensory Strategies for Students With Dyslexia. *Kappa Delta Pi Record*, 54, 1 (March 2018), 36-40. http://10.1080/00228958.2018.1407181
- Eileen Bailey. 2018. Multisensory Teaching Approaches for dyslexia. Retrieved December 22, 2018 from https://www.thoughtco.com/multisensoryapproaches-for-dyslexia-3111175
- 5. Lexicon Reading Centre. 2018. What is Multisensory teaching?. Retrieved September 16, 2018 fromhttps://www.lexiconreadingcenter.org/multise nsory-teaching/
- 6. Mahnaz Akhavan Tafti and Elahe Abdolrahmani. 2014. The Effects of a Multisensory Method Combined with Relaxation Techniques on Writing Skills and Homework Anxiety in Students with Dysgraphia. *International Journal of Psychology and Behavioral Sciences*, 4, 4: 121-127.
- Annalene van Staden and Nicole Purcell. 2016. Multi-Sensory Learning Strategies to Support Spelling Development: a Case Study of Second-Language Learners with Auditory Processing Difficulties. *International Journal on Language Literature and Culture in Education*, 3, 1: 40-61.

- Irene Chen, Stephen J.H. Yang and Norman W.Y. Shao. 2004. Applying Multi-Sensory Learning Model with Mobile Handheld Devices to Pervasive Learning. In *Proceedings of the The 2nd IEEE International Workshop on Wireless and Mobile Technologies in Education (WMTE'04)*, 1-2.
- Michael Bates. 2018. Multisensory Learning. Retrieved November 11, 2018 fromhttps://www.dyslexia-readingwell.com/multisensory-learning.html

Gamification, Multimedia and Digital Games in Education. She holds a Bachelor of Information Technology (Multimedia) from University of Malaya. Subsequently, she obtained a Master of Education (Multimedia) and Doctor of Philosophy in Education Multimedia from Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris.

Authors

Nor Zuhaidah Mohamed Zain is a lecturer in Faculty of Arts, Computing and Creative Industry at Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris. She received Bachelor Degree in Information Technology from Universiti Utara Malaysia in 2001 and Master of Science (Information Technology) from Universiti Teknologi MARA in 2005. Her research interests lie in the area of multimedia learning in education and implementation of mobile learning, focusing on special education needs.

Nadia Abdul Wahab is a senior lecturer in Faculty of Computer & Mathematical Sciences, Universiti Teknologi MARA, Perlis. She received PhD in Instructional Multimedia from Universiti Sains, Malaysia in 2016. Her research interests are in the field of instructional design, multimedia learning and humancomputer interaction (HCI).

Laili Farhana Md Ibharim who is currently in Faculty of Art, Computing and Creative Industry, Universiti Pendidikan Sultan Idris, has been a senior lecturer for almost 3 years. She has extensive experience in